
 
 

1 
 

 
 
 
 
1. Roll Call 

 
2. Educational Session – Overview of 2014 Audited Comprehensive annual report – Jeff Peters, 

Williams & Company, CPA. 
 

3. Informational Session – Vermillion Fertilizer Company proposal to sell 325 W Chestnut to the City – 
John Prescott. 
 

4. Adjourn 
 

 
Access the City Council Agenda on the web – www.vermillion.us 
 
Addressing the Council: Persons addressing the Council shall use the microphone at the podium. Please state your name and address. 
Presentations are limited to 5 minutes. For those who do not appear on the agenda, no decision is to be expected at this time. 
 
Meeting Assistance: If you require assistance, alternative formats and/or accessible locations consistent with the Americans with 
Disabilities Act, please contact the City Manager’s Office at 677-7050 at least 3 working days prior to the meeting.  
 
Council Meetings: City Council regular meetings are held the first and third Monday of each month at 7:00 p.m. If a meeting falls on 
a City holiday, the meeting will be scheduled for the following Tuesday. 
 
Live Broadcasts of Council Meetings on Cable Channel: Regular City Council meetings are broadcast live on Cable Channel 3. 
 

As a courtesy to others, we ask that cellular phones and pagers be turned off during the meeting. 
 

Special Meeting Agenda 
City Council 

12: 00 pm. (noon) Special Meeting 
Monday, September 21, 2015 

Large Conference Room-City Hall 
25 Center Street 

Vermillion, South Dakota 57069 
 



 
 

1 
 

 
 
 
1. Roll Call 

 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 

 
3. Minutes 

a. September 8, 2015 Special Meeting, September 8, 2015 Regular Meeting, September 15, 2015 Special 
Meeting. 

 
4. Adoption of the Agenda 

 
5. Visitors To Be Heard 

 
6. Public Hearings 

a. Special permit to exceed permissible sound levels by no more than 50% for W.H. Over Museum at 1110 
North University on October 9 & 10, 2015 for Oktoberfest. 

b. Special daily malt beverage and wine license for Vermillion Area Chamber & Development Company, 
Inc. on or about October 9 & 10, 2015 at 1110 North University for Oktoberfest. 

 
7. Old Business 

a. Second reading of Ordinance 1330 – 2016 Appropriations. 
b. Second reading of Ordinance 1331 – 2015 Revised Appropriations. 
 

8. New Business 
a. Tree Board appointment. 
b. Street Closure Request Modification September 30th to add Main Street from Prospect to High Street 

4:30 p.m. - 11:30 p.m. 
c. Utilities Committee report on amending Chapter 53 Water, Sewers, and Sewage Disposal, Sections 

53.110 through 53.123. 
d. Resolution Supporting the City’s Transportation Alternatives Program Grant Application for a possible 

downtown infrastructure program. 
e. Developers Agreement between the City and Polaris Industries Inc. for Lot 1A, Block 3, Erickson 

Addition. 
f. 2014 Audited Comprehensive annual report. 
g. Labor and Finance Committee report on AFSCME agreement negotiations. 
 

9. Bid Openings 
 

10. City Manager’s Report 
 

11. Invoices Payable 

City of Vermillion Council Agenda 
7:00 p.m. Regular Meeting 

Monday, September 21, 2015 
City Council Chambers 

25 Center Street 
Vermillion, South Dakota 57069 

 



 
 

2 
 

 
12. Consensus Agenda 

 
13. Adjourn 

 
Access the City Council Agenda on the web – www.vermillion.us 
 
Addressing the Council:  Persons addressing the Council shall use the microphone at the podium.  Please raise your hand to be 
recognized, go to the podium and state your name and address.  
a. Items Not on the Agenda Members of the public may speak under Visitors to Be Heard on any topic NOT on the agenda.  
Remarks are limited to 5 minutes and no decision will be made at this time. 
b. Agenda Items:  Public testimony will be taken at the beginning of each agenda item, after the subject has been announced by the 
Mayor and explained by staff.  Any citizen who wishes may speak one time for 5 minutes on each agenda item.  Public testimony will 
then be closed and the topic will be given to the governing body for possible action.  At this point, only City Council members and 
staff may discuss the current agenda item unless a Council member moves to allow another person to speak and there is unanimous 
consent from the Council.  Questions from Council members, however, may be directed to staff or a member of the public through the 
presiding officer at any time. 
 
Meeting Assistance:  The City of Vermillion fully subscribes to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990. If you 
desire to attend this public meeting and are in need of special accommodations, please notify the City Manager's Office at 677-7050 at 
least 3 working days prior to the meeting so appropriate auxiliary aids and services can be made available.  
 
Council Meetings:  City Council regular meetings are held the first and third Monday of each month at 7:00 p.m. If a meeting falls on 
a City holiday, the meeting will be scheduled for the following Tuesday. 
 
Live Broadcasts of Council Meetings on Cable Channel: Regular City Council meetings are broadcast live on Cable Channel 3. 
 
As a courtesy to others, we ask that cellular phones and pagers be turned off during the meeting. 

 
Vermillion City Council’s Values and Vision 

This community values its people, its services, its vitality and growth, and its quality of life and sees itself 
reinforcing and promoting these ideals to a consistently increasing populace. 



1 
 

Unapproved Minutes  
Council Special Session 
September 8, 2015 
Tuesday 12:00 noon 
 
The special session of the City Council, City of Vermillion, South 
Dakota was held on Tuesday, September 8, 2015 at 12:00 noon at the City 
Hall large conference room.   
 
1. Roll Call 
 
Present: Collier-Wise, Erickson, Holland, Clarene Meins, Price, 
Willson, Mayor Powell 
 
Absent: Holly Meins, Ward 
 
2. Informational Session – Vermillion Municipal Liquor Store - Gregg 
Peters 
 
Gregg Peters, Liquor Store Manager, reported that there has been an 
increase in the number of craft beers being produced but noted that 
many of the craft beers are not available in cans or bottles but kegs 
only. Gregg stated that to make these craft beers available a growler 
fill station is needed, whereby a growler (a 32 or 64 ounce plastic or 
glass container) is filled from a keg. Gregg explained how a growler 
fill station worked noting that the station he would like to install in 
the liquor store would hold six beer kegs with one fill station. Gregg 
stated that the total cost of the fill station would be $15,000 and he 
projected a payback in 2 to 3 years. Gregg answered questions of the 
City Council on the fill station. Discussion followed with the 
consensus of the City Council to go forward with the growler fill 
station and revise the budget later this year for the capital purchase. 
 
3. Informational Session – Overview of proposed WAPA Firm Electric 
Service agreement – John Prescott 
 
John Prescott, City Manager, reported that Western Area Power 
Administration (WAPA) provided on average about 65% of the city 
electric power needs with Missouri River Energy Services providing the 
balance. John stated that our current power supply contract with WAPA 
will expire in December 2020 and that WAPA started the contract renewal 
process in 2011. John stated that MRES has been assisting all its 
members with their contract renewals providing legal review. John noted 
that two of the major items are that the contract is for 30 years 
expiring in 2050 and it continues our current summer and winter power 
allotment that can be reduced up to 1% in 2021, 2031 and 2041 but 
requires two years advance notice. John noted that the contracts are 



2 
 

the same for all WAPA preference power customers. John stated that the 
next step is that MRES will provide its opinion on the proposed 
agreement, WAPA will be notified and final contracts will be provided 
and the City Council will need to take action. Discussion followed on 
the proposed contract. 
 
4. Briefing on the September 8, 2015 City Council Regular Meeting 
Agenda    
 
Council reviewed items on the agenda with City staff. No action was 
taken. 
 
5. Adjourn 
 
268-15 
Alderman Holland moved to adjourn the Council special session at 12:33 
p.m. Alderman Price seconded the motion. Motion carried 7 to 0. Mayor 
Powell declared the motion adopted. 
 
Dated at Vermillion, South Dakota this 8th day of September, 2015. 
 

THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY 
OF VERMILLION, SOUTH DAKOTA    

BY____________________________ 
                                         John E. (Jack) Powell, Mayor     

ATTEST: 
BY___________________________________ 
  Michael D. Carlson, Finance Officer 
 
 
 
 
 
Unapproved Minutes 
City Council Regular Session 
September 8, 2015 
Tuesday - 7:00 p.m. 
 
The regular session of the City Council, City of Vermillion, South 
Dakota was called to order on Tuesday, September 8, 2015 at 7:00 p.m. 
by Mayor Powell. 
 
1. Roll Call 
 
Present: Collier-Wise, Erickson, Holland, Clarene Meins, Holly Meins, 
Price, Ward, Willson, Mayor Powell 
 



3 
 

2. Pledge of Allegiance 
 
3. Minutes 
 
A. Minutes of August 17, 2015 Special Meeting, August 17, 2015 Regular 
Meeting  
 
269-15 
Alderman  Willson moved approval of the August 17, 2015 Special Meeting 
and August 17, 2015 Regular Meeting minutes. Alderman Clarene Meins    
seconded the motion. Motion carried 9 to 0. Mayor Powell declared the 
motion adopted. 
 
4. Adoption of Agenda 
 
270-15 
Alderman Ward moved approval of the agenda. Alderman Price seconded the 
motion. Motion carried 9 to 0. Mayor Powell declared the motion 
adopted. 
 
5. Visitors to be Heard 
 
A. Pinning of Vermillion Volunteer Fire Fighters Blaine Schoellerman 
and Matthew Wannamaker 
 
Shannon Draper, Fire Chief, reported that Blaine Schoellerman and 
Matthew Wannamaker have completed the necessary probationary training 
to be recognized as Vermillion Volunteer Fire Fighters and pinned 
department badges on each. Mayor Powell on behalf of the City Council 
and community thanked the firefighters for their service to the 
community.  
 
B. Life Saving award for EMS members Matt Callahan, Joe Kyte, John 
Wetherington and Matt Taggart 
 
Shannon Draper, Fire Chief, recongnized EMS members Matt Callahan, Joe 
Kyte, John Wetherington and Matt Taggart for their life savings actions 
on August 27, 2015. Shannon noted their outstanding performance and 
presented Life Saving Awards to each. Mayor Powell on behalf of the 
City Council and community thanked the EMS members for their life 
saving actions. 
 
C. Direct Support Professionals Recognition week 
 
Alderman Ward read the proclamation recognizing the week of September 6 
– 12, 2015 as Direct Support Professionals Recognition Week in 



4 
 

Vermillion. Mayor Powell presented the proclamation to Direct Support 
Professions from SESDAC. 
 
D. Vermillion Without Violence Day proclamation 
 
Alderman Clarene Meins read the proclamation designating September 29, 
2015 as Vermillion Without Violence Day and encouraged all citizens to 
help build a safe community 
 
E. United Way of Vermillion week proclamation 
 
Alderman Price read the proclamation designating the week of September 
7 – 13, 2015 as United Way Week in Vermillion. Mayor Powell presented 
the proclamation to Kelsey Collier-Wise on behalf of United Way 
Vermillion.  
 
6. Public Hearings 
 
A. Resolution setting a Special Assessment Roll for nuisance abatement 
 
Mike Carlson reported that on August 17th the City Council adopted a 
resolution setting the public hearing for tonight for consideration of 
the special assessment roll. The notice of hearing resolution was 
published and mailed to the property owners. The assessments are for 
nuisance abatement during the last year for grass/weed removal, snow 
removal and removal of debris. Mike reported that, if adopted, the 
listed property owners will be sent this resolution allowing 30 days to 
pay the assessment without interest and if not paid will be certified 
to the County to be included on next year’s taxes. Discussion followed. 
 
271-15 
After reading the same once, Alderman Willson moved adoption of the 
following: 
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING THE SPECIAL ASSESSMENT ROLL 
AND NOTICE OF SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS 

FOR NUISANCE ABATEMENT 
IN THE CITY OF VERMILLION, SOUTH DAKOTA 

 
 WHEREAS, the Governing Body of the City of Vermillion, Clay 
County, South Dakota has established a special assessment roll for 
defraying the cost of nuisance abatement against the several tracts of 
real property upon: 
 
     NUISANCE ABATEMENT as listed at the end of this Resolution 
 



5 
 

in the City of Vermillion, Clay County, South Dakota. The assessment 
roll was filed in the office of the City Finance Officer of the City of 
Vermillion, South Dakota on the 10th day of August, 2015. 
 
 WHEREAS, said Governing Body, by resolution, fixed this time and 
place for hearing upon the assessment roll for the 8th day of 
September, 2015 and directed the City Finance Officer of the City of 
Vermillion, Clay County, South Dakota to publish a Resolution and 
Notice for such hearing in the official newspaper of Vermillion, South 
Dakota, one week prior to the date set for said hearing. Said 
Resolution and Notice described, in general terms, the improvement for 
which the special assessment is levied, the date of filing of the 
assessment roll, the time and place for the hearing, that the 
assessment roll would be open for public inspection at the office of 
the City Finance Officer of Vermillion, South Dakota, and referred to 
the assessment roll for further particulars. The Finance Officer was 
further directed to mail a copy of the Resolution and Notice by first-
class mail, postage thereon fully prepaid, addressed to the property 
owners of any property to be assessed for such improvement at their 
address, as shown by the records of the Director of Equalization, at 
least one week prior to the date set for the hearing. 
 
 WHEREAS, it now appears that the Finance Officer has caused notice 
of the hearing to be given in the manner provided by the aforementioned 
Resolution and Notice, and by law. 
 
 WHEREAS, all persons interested have been given an opportunity to 
appear and show cause why the Governing Body should not approve the 
assessment roll, and the assessments against the respective premises of 
the owners, and the Governing Body has determined that the assessment 
roll is in all respects true and correct, and according to law. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS RESOLVED, by the Governing Body of the City 
of Vermillion, Clay County, South Dakota that the special assessment 
roll is hereby approved without amendment or change. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the approved assessment roll be filed 
in the office of the City Finance Officer the day after approval of the 
assessment roll. The City Finance Officer shall publish once in the 
official newspaper of Vermillion, South Dakota, a copy of this 
Resolution and Notice, along with the approved assessment roll. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Finance Officer shall 
immediately mail to the owner, or owners, of each lot, parcel or piece 
of ground as shown by the assessment roll, a copy of this Resolution 
and Notice along with the approved assessment roll. 
 



6 
 

 NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN, that the assessments mentioned in the 
assessment roll will be payable according to the provisions of Plan One 
as set forth in SDCL Sections 9-43-102 to 9-43-113. 
 
 NOTICE IS FURTHER GIVEN, that any assessment under Plan One, or 
any installment thereof, may be paid without interest to the City 
Finance Officer whose office is located in the Municipal Building at 25 
Center Street in the City of Vermillion, South Dakota, at any time 
within thirty (30) days after the filing of the approved assessment 
roll in the office of said City Finance Officer. Thereafter, and prior 
to the due date of the first installment, the entire assessment 
remaining, plus interest thereon from the filing date to the date of 
payment may be paid to the said City Finance Officer. No installment 
under Plan One shall be paid to the said City Finance Officer on or 
after its due date, and on and after said date such installment shall 
be paid only to the County Treasurer with interest. 
 
 NOTICE IS FURTHER GIVEN, that the approved assessment roll will be 
filed with the City Finance Officer on 9th day of September, 2015. The 
assessment is payable in one (1) installment at ten percent (10%) per 
annum interest on unpaid installments. The first installment due date 
is January 1, 2016.  
 
 The assessment roll herein referred to is attached. 
 
 Dated at Vermillion, South Dakota, this 8th day of September, 
2015. 
 
      THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY OF 
      VERMILLION, CLAY COUNTY, SOUTH DAKOTA 
 
       __________________________ 
       John E. Jack Powell, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________________ 
Michael D. Carlson, Finance Officer 
 
City of Vermillion Special Assessment Roll 
 
 Parcel Number   
Name Legal & Property Address Service Amount 
Apostolic Faith Church 15050-06200-090-00 snow tagging & removal 11/15/14 63.60 
 W 71' Of N 1/2 Of Lot 8 & W 71'   
  Of Lot 9 Blk 62 Bigelows Addn   
 23 N Harvard   



7 
 

    
Raymond Gill Jr. 15170-00100-030-00 snow tagging & removal 11/15/14 63.60 
 S 18' Of Lots 1 & 2 & N 32' Of snow tagging & removal 1/7/15 63.60 
 Lot 3 Blk 1 College Park grass tagging & mowing 6/5/15 74.20 
 15 Linden total 201.40 
    
Allen & Lisa Hesse 15720-05700-070-00 snow tagging & removal 11/15/14 84.80 
 Lots 6 & 7 Blk 57 Snyders   
 302 Prospect   
    
Alice Kutilek &  15730-08300-020-03 grass tagging & mowing 9/15/14 63.60 
  Sheila Isom S 50' Of E 106.25' Lot 2 Blk 83    
 Addn To Snyders Addn   
 420 Franklin   
    
Alice I Kutilek  15720-04100-120-00 grass tagging & mowing 8/21/14 116.60 
  Revolkable Trust Lot 12 Blk 41 Snyders snow tagging & removal 11/15/14 63.60 
 119 Franklin grass tagging & mowing 5/21/15 95.40 
  total 275.60 
    
Anastasia Maul 15810-02500-060-00 grass tagging  6/5/14 10.60 
 Lot 6 Blk 25 Van Meters grass tagging 9/15/14 31.80 
 1005 W Main total 42.40 
    
Peter, Mark &  15860-09251-190-24 snow tagging & removal 11/15/14 84.80 
  Karin Monzel Lot 1 Replat Of Aud Tract A S  snow tagging & removal 1/7/15 100.70 
 1/2 Lot 2 NW 1/4 19-92-51 Aud  grass tagging & mowing 5/21/15 111.30 
 Tract 19-92-51 total 296.80 
 601 Lewis   
    
Jeff Peterson 15190-00000-060-00 grass tagging & mowing 6/13/14 74.20 
 Lot 6 Coverdales grass tagging & mowing 6/19/15 74.20 
 624 Lewis total 148.40 
    
Scott Melody 15500-00000-050-00 grass tagging 5/16/14 10.60 
 S 21' Of Lot 4 & N 41.5' Of Lot 5  grass tagging & mowing 7/25/14 95.40 
 Nelsons grass tagging & mowing 8/21/14 116.60 
 110 S Pine grass tagging & mowing 6/19/15 74.20 
  total 296.80 
    
Abul Shaifullah 15080-00100-070-00 grass tagging & mowing 6/5/14 74.20 
 Lot 7 Blk 1 Replat Of Blessing junk & debris removal 6/16/14 387.55 



8 
 

 325 Prentis grass tagging 7/25/14 10.60 
  grass tagging 9/15/14 31.80 
  snow tagging & removal 11/15/14 63.60 
  snow tagging & removal 1/7/15 84.80 
  total 652.55 
    
Tim Tilden 15720-06000-010-00 snow tagging & removal 1/7/15 63.60 
 Lot 1 Blk 60 Snyders snow tagging & removal 2/4/15 63.60 
 324 N Dakota grass tagging & mowing 5/5/15 74.20 
  grass tagging & mowing 6/5/15 95.40 
  grass tagging & moving 7/17/15 116.60 
  total 413.40 
 
The amount of the assessment is payable, under Plan One, at the office 
of the Clay County Treasurer, in the Courthouse, in the City of 
Vermillion, Clay County, South Dakota, UNLESS paid to the City Finance 
Officer, whose office is located in the Municipal Building at 25 Center 
Street in the City of Vermillion, Clay County, South Dakota, within 30 
days after the approved assessment roll is filed in the office of the 
City Finance Officer.  Wherever the work “Lot” appears in this exhibit 
it shall be construed to include tracts and other parcels of land.  
 
The motion was seconded by Alderman Erickson. Discussion followed and 
the question of the adoption of the Resolution was presented for a vote 
of the Governing Body. 9 members voted in favor of and 0 members voted 
in opposition to the Resolution. Mayor Powell declared that the 
Resolution was adopted. 
 
7. Old Business - None 
 
8. New Business 
 
A. Review and use of malt beverage markup receipts collected, proposal 
to use funding during 2016 budget year, and public input on 
continuation of the wholesale license fee 
 
John Prescott, City Manager, reported that, during the development of 
the ordinance to implement a 5% markup on the wholesale cost of malt 
beverages, staff included an annual update to the community in the 
proposal. John stated that license holders were provided notice that 
this item was included on tonight’s agenda. John stated that the 
ordinance implementing the 5% markup on the wholesale cost of malt 
beverages became effective on July 1, 2015. John reported that, at this 
point in time, the City only has history for the month of July with the 
City revenue of $9,957.47. John reported that all of the proceeds from 
the collection in the revised 2015 budget and proposed 2016 budget were 



9 
 

placed in the Prentis Park Debt Service fund to repay the general 
obligation bond which will be issued for park improvements. John stated 
that the City Council should receive public input on the continuation 
of the wholesale license fee. Mayor Powell asked for public input on 
the malt beverage markup. 
 
Joshua Suing, Manager of Hy-Vee, asked the question if the 5% malt 
beverage mark up is to be included as part of the cost of the product 
noting that he has asked this question each time he came before the 
City Council.   
 
John Prescott, City Manager, reported that in contacting the Department 
of Revenue an oral report was received from the Deputy Director that 
the markup should be included as part of the merchandise cost. John 
stated that a written statement was requested from the Department of 
Revenue but has not been received. John stated that the oral report 
information on the markup has been provided in notices to the licensee. 
 
Joshua Suing, Manager of Hy-Vee, stated that some businesses are 
selling beer below the cost plus the markup and wanted to know why the 
City was not enforcing the state law. Jim McCulloch, City Attorney, 
noted that there is a state statute that prohibits the sale of 
alcoholic beverages below cost and encouraged reporting of this 
practice to the Department of Revenue. Joshua stated that he was 
concerned about the unfair retail practices which may cause customers 
to leave town to make purchases. 
 
Discussion followed on the markup. 
 
272-15 
Alderman Holland moved to close the public input on the malt beverage 
markup and continue the wholesale license fee with the proceeds for the 
Prentis Park improvements. Alderman Price seconded the motion. Motion 
carried 9 to 0. Mayor Powell declared the motion adopted.   
 
B. First reading of Ordinance 1330 – 2016 Appropriations 
 
John Prescott, City Manager, reported that the proposed budget was 
presented to the City Council on August 3th and the Council held 
hearings to review the budget on August 11th and 13th. John thank the 
City Council for the time spent meeting with all the departments to 
refine the budget. John reviewed some of the major items that are 
included in the 2016 budget ordinance. Discussion followed on the 
budget. 
 
 
 



10 
 

273-15 
Mayor Powell read the title to the above mentioned Ordinance and 
Alderman Willson moved adoption of the following Resolution: 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, that the minutes of this meeting shall show that the 
title to proposed Ordinance No. 1330 entitled An Ordinance Adopting the 
2016 Budget Ordinance of the City of Vermillion, South Dakota has been 
read and the Ordinance has been considered for the first time in its 
present form and content at this meeting being a regularly called 
meeting of the Governing Body of the City on this 8th day of September, 
2015 at the Council Chambers in City Hall in the manner prescribed by 
SDCL 9-19-7 as amended. 
 
The motion was seconded by Alderman Collier-Wise. After discussion, the 
question of adoption of the Resolution was put to a vote of the 
Governing Body and 9 members voted in favor of and 0 members voted in 
opposition to the motion. Mayor Powell declared the motion adopted.  
 
C. First reading of Ordinance 1331 – 2015 Revised Appropriations 
 
John Prescott, City Manager, reported that the City Council adopted the 
2015 budget in September 2014 and, during the 2016 budget process, the 
2015 budget amounts were revised based upon information that is 
currently available. John reviewed some of the major changes to the 
2015 budget amounts, noting that there will most likely be a 
supplemental budget needed later this year for items that will change 
between now and the end of the year. John answered questions on the 
revised budget. 
 
274-15 
Mayor Powell read the title to the above mentioned Ordinance and 
Alderman Collier-Wise moved adoption of the following Resolution: 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, that the minutes of this meeting shall show that the 
title to proposed Ordinance No. 1331 entitled An Ordinance Adopting the 
2015 Revised Budget Ordinance of the City of Vermillion, South Dakota 
has been read and the Ordinance has been considered for the first time 
in its present form and content at this meeting being a regularly 
called meeting of the Governing Body of the City on this 8th day of 
September, 2015 at the Council Chambers in City Hall in the manner 
prescribed by SDCL 9-19-7 as amended. 
 
The motion was seconded by Alderman Holland. After discussion, the 
question of adoption of the Resolution was put to a vote of the 
Governing Body and 9 members voted in favor of and 0 members voted in 
opposition to the motion. Mayor Powell declared the motion adopted.  
 



11 
 

D. Developer’s agreement with G.A. Haan Development, LLC owner of Lot 
1, Block 1, Madison Park Addition 
 
Jose Dominguez, City Engineer, reported that G.A. Haan Development, LLC 
is in the process of constructing several apartment units on Lot 1, 
Block 1, Madison Park Addition. Jose noted that the lot is located on 
the southeast corner of the intersection of North Norbeck Street and 
Madison Street. Jose stated that City ordinance requires that the 
property owner construct sidewalks, grading, curb and gutter, street 
surfacing, street lights, water and sewer improvements on all streets 
abutting a property to be developed. Jose stated that as the lot in 
question fronts North Norbeck Street and Madison Street. Jose stated 
that the agreement will allow the owner to wait with the Madison Street 
side of the property improvements until such time as the city or other 
property owners along the street need the services. Discussion 
followed. 
 
275-15 
Alderman Willson moved approval of the Developer’s agreement as 
presented with G.A. Haan Development, LLC owner of Lot 1, Block 1, 
Madison Park Addition. Alderman Holland seconded the motion. Motion 
carried 9 to 0. Mayor Powell declared the motion adopted.  
 
E. Resolution extending the cable franchise agreement for 1 year to 
continue franchise renewal discussions 
  
John Prescott, City Manager, reported that, in September 1999, the City 
Council adopted Ordinance No. 1078. He stated that this ordinance 
provided for a 15-year nonexclusive franchise agreement for cable 
television services. The original franchise agreement was signed with 
Zylstra Communications Corporation but has been transferred several 
times since 1999 and is currently held by Midcontinent Communications. 
John stated that several meetings have been held on the franchise 
ordinance but no final document is available. John stated that the 
current ordinance provided for two additional twelve month extensions 
by the Manager with the approval of the Municipality notifying the 
Company of the same in writing. John stated that in September 2014 the 
City Council approved a twelve month extension and the company is 
agreeable to the second twelve month extension and, as such, he 
recommends adoption of the resolution extending the Cable TV franchise 
agreement. Discussion followed on the franchise and extension.  
 
276-15 
Alderman Erickson moved approval of the Resolution Amending Ordinance 
No. 1078 Cable Communications Franchise Ordinance to allow for the 
second twelve month extension as provided in section 10.2 of the 



12 
 

ordinance. Alderman Collier-Wise seconded the motion. Motion carried 9 
to 0. Mayor Powell declared the motion adopted. 
 
F. Request to temporarily close parking stalls on Center Street for a 
mural painting project from September 21-25, 2015 
 
John Prescott, City Manager, reported that a request was received from 
the Vermillion Area Arts Council to close the parking stalls along the 
east side of Center Street from Main to the alley on September 21-26, 
2015 for the safety of workers restoring the Missouri Weave mural. John 
noted the agenda has the closing ending on September 25th but a request 
was received to allow the use on September 26th if additional time was 
needed and, as such, the amended request.  
 
277-15 
Alderman Collier-Wise moved approval of the request to close parking on 
the east side of Center Street from Main Street north to the alley on 
September 21-26, 2015 for the Missouri Weave mural restoration. 
Alderman Willson seconded the motion. Motion carried 9 to 0. Mayor 
Powell declared the motion adopted. 
 
G. Declare the Street Department snow blower surplus and authorize its 
sale to Clay County, SD 
 
Jose Dominguez, City Engineer, reported that the 1995 Fair 9541C snow 
blower was budgeted in the 2015 Equipment Replacement Fund to be 
replaced. Jose reported that the replacement snow blower has been 
received and is ready for service this winter. Jose stated that the 
Street Department staff has been in contact with Clay County Highway 
Department staff regarding the potential to purchase the 1995 unit. 
Jose stated that South Dakota State Statute allows the transfer of 
property between governing bodies at terms and conditions agreed upon 
by the respective governing bodies. Jose noted that the equipment 
replacement fund has a salvage value of $8,000 for the snow blower and 
Clay County is willing to purchase the surplus unit for this amount. 
Jose recommended declaring the 1995 Fair snow blower surplus and 
authorizing the sale to Clay County for $8,000. 
 
278-15 
Alderman Ward moved approval of declaring the 1995 Fair 9541C snow 
blower as surplus and authorizing the sale to Clay County for $8,000.  
Alderman Willson seconded the motion. Motion carried 9 to 0. Mayor 
Powell declared the motion adopted. 
 
9. Bid Openings 
 
A. Fuel quotes 



13 
 

Mike Carlson, Finance Officer, read the monthly fuel quotes and 
recommended the low quote of Stern Oil on all items. 
 
Item 1 - 4,350 gal unleaded 10% ethanol: Stern Oil $1.9024, Brunick’s 
Service $1.95; Item 2 - 1,000 gal unleaded: Stern Oil $2.3026, 
Brunick’s Service $2.35; Item 3 – 3,000 gal No. 2 Diesel fuel dyed: 
Stern Oil $1.8936, Brunick’s Service $1.90; Item 4 - 1,000 gal No. 2 
diesel fuel-clear: Stern Oil $2.1901, Brunick’s Service $2.23 
 
279-15 
Alderman Willson moved approval of the low quote of Stern Oil on all 
four items. Alderman Erickson seconded the motion. Discussion followed. 
Motion carried 9 to 0. President Powell declared the motion adopted. 
 
10. City Manager's Report 
 
A. John reported on the receipt of the following raffle notifications: 
 

• St. Agnes is selling raffle tickets for $1 each or 20 for $15  
There are a variety of miscellaneous cash prizes with the 
maximum prize of $500. Tickets will be sold September 15 
through October 18, 2015. Drawing takes place at Fall Festival 
on October 18th. Proceeds go to support the St. Agnes church and 
school. 

• The Eagles are selling raffle tickets for $1 each or 6 for $5. 
The prize is a Crown Royal Bag Quilt valued at $300. Proceeds 
go to support the Hi Soaring Eagle Ranch. 

• St. Agnes Knights of Columbus are selling Monday Night Football 
books for $20. Up to 200 books will be sold. Based on the 
winning score, the winner will receive $50 per game. Proceeds 
go to support the local St. Agnes Knights of Columbus and their 
charitable causes.  

• St. Agnes Youth Group will be selling $1 tickets from September 
10 to October 18, 2015. The prize is a 2002 Kia Reo 4dr auto 
valued at $2,900. The proceeds are used to benefit the 
activities of St. Agnes Youth Group. 
 

B. John reminded citizens that Market Street and parts of Main Street 
will be closed Thursday, September 10th from 4:00 p.m. to 7:30 p.m. for 
Vermillion Day events. 
 
C. John reminded citizens that Ribs, Rods and Rock N’Roll is this 
Friday and Saturday, Sept 11 & 12. John reported that there will be 
street closings on Friday, Saturday and part of Sunday in the downtown 
area for setup & takedown as well as car show, food vendors, street 
dance and related events.  
 



14 
 

D. John reported that legal notices are available on the City’s 
website. John stated that individuals can also subscribe at no cost to 
be emailed legal notices as posted. John stated that City Council 
minutes are on the website for review but are not automatically emailed 
out. 
 
E. John reported that the City Engineer has approved the following 
plats: 
 

Lot 8, Blk 2, Bliss Pointe Addition 
Lots 1A and 2A, Blk 6, Bliss Pointe Addition 
Lot 5, Blk 2, Bliss Pointe Addition 
Lot 3, Blk 4, Erickson Addition 
Lot 9, Blk 2, Bliss Pointe Addition 

 
F. John reported that earlier this year the City Council declared a 
1994 Ford F150 pickup used by Parks Dept and a 2003 Ford 250 used by 
the landfill as surplus. John stated that these items were advertised 
to other cities in SD. John reported that the City of Canton purchased 
both vehicles for $750 and $3,150, respectively, which is 90% of the 
appraised value. 
 
G. John reported that Expression of Interest forms for the Downtown 
Public Facilities Committee are being accepted until noon on September 
17th and asked interested citizens to consider assisting on the 
committee. 
 

PAYROLL ADDITIONS AND CHANGES 
 
Finance: Linda Wensel $25.26/hr; Ambulance: Amanda Hansen $8.50/call-
$6.00/1st-$6.00/2nd, David Kyte $9.00/FTO; Recreation: Peyton Larson 
$8.50/hr, Samantha Nieman $8.50/hr; Library: Dylan Chang $11.62/hr, 
Jessica Howard $8.50/hr; Communications: Wendy Carroll $20.07/hr, 
Jessica Standley $18.55/hr; Golf Clubhouse: Bert Bucher $8.50/hr; Golf 
Maintenance: Kory Diefendorf $8.50/hr, Brian Juran $8.50, Kody Nelson 
$8.50/hr; Curbside Recycling: Dan Hanson $16.20/hr 
 
11. Invoices Payable 
 
280-15 
Alderman Ward moved approval of the following invoices: 
 
Rich Holland fuel reimbursement 37.22 
 
Alderman Collier-Wise seconded the motion. Motion carried 9 to 0. Mayor 
Powell declared the motion adopted. 
 



15 
 

284-15 
Alderman Ward moved approval of the following invoices: 
 
3D Specialties Inc supplies 5,046.90 
A & A Refrigeration repairs 154.00 
AGK Electric underground reimbursement 804.00 
Allied Insurance notary bond renewal 100.00 
American Legal Publishing on line ordinance renewal 375.00 
Antigua Group, Inc merchandise 753.87 
Apex Equipment, LLC repairs 1,290.40 
Appeara supplies 109.70 
Aramark Uniform Services uniform cleaning 209.35 
Baker & Taylor Books books 842.03 
Banner Associates, Inc professional services 5,152.31 
Barkley Asphalt asphalt mix 724.40 
Basin Electric Power Cooperation maintenance 568.69 
Best Western Ramkota Inn lodging 183.98 
Bierschbach Eqpt & Supply parts/rental  3,570.61 
Blackstone Audio Inc books 185.99 
Blaine's Body Shop repairs 661.95 
Bob Iverson safety glasses reimbursement 150.00 
Border States Elec Supply supplies 2,166.83 
Bound Tree Medical, LLC supplies 809.54 
Bow Creek Metal Inc powder coating 150.00 
Broadcaster Press advertising 103.50 
Brunicks Service Inc propane 57.00 
Builders Choice repairs 600.00 
Burns & McDonnell professional services 1,993.09 
Butler Machinery Co. repairs 938.11 
Campbell Supply supplies 2,401.77 
Cannon Technologies, Inc supplies 6,240.72 
Cask & Cork merchandise 532.00 
Central States Wire Products supplies 1,751.50 
Century Business Leasing copier contract/copies 195.41 
Centurylink 911 relay service 5.00 
Centurylink telephone 743.46 
Chemco, Inc supplies 372.52 
Chesterman Co merchandise 1,102.00 
Chris Nissen safety boots reimbursement 100.00 
City Of Saint Paul training classes 329.00 
City Of Sioux Falls testing 58.00 
City Of Vermillion copies/postage 1,569.95 
City Of Vermillion utility bills 44,987.68 



16 
 

Class C Solutions Group supplies 185.38 
Clia Laboratory Program certification fee 150.00 
Colonial Life Acc Ins. insurance 3,276.43 
Continental Research Corp supplies 1,971.59 
Coyote Convenience fuel 38.12 
Culligan Water bottled water 152.00 
Dakota Beverage merchandise 13,871.62 
Dakota PC Warehouse supplies/repairs 953.87 
Dakota Security Systems alarm monitoring 480.00 
Dakota Supply Group supplies 607.96 
Delta Dental Plan insurance 6,337.58 
Demco supplies 317.08 
Dennis Martens maintenance 833.34 
Dept Of Revenue testing 1,532.00 
Derek Ronning gym membership reimbursement 175.00 
DGR Engineering professional services 1,664.50 
Diamond Vogel Paints white traffic paint 2,475.00 
Dust Tex mat service 80.00 
E.A Sween Company supplies 205.93 
Earthgrains Baking Co's Inc supplies 252.33 
Eberle Design Inc recertify 356.00 
Echo Electric Supply supplies 3,021.15 
Elbo Computing Resources professional services 106.20 
Electronic Engineering repairs/installation 5,242.34 
Elliott Equipment Co parts 338.26 
Empire Building Const bldg repairs 4,297.00 
Environmental Resource Assoc. supplies 185.71 
Ez-Liner Industries repairs 272.56 
Farmer Brothers Co. supplies 113.80 
Fast Auto Glass windshield 391.00 
Fastenal Company supplies 601.03 
Fedex. shipping 24.55 
Foreman Media council mtg 100.00 
Four Winds Interactive hosting/maintenance 381.00 
General Repair Service parts 354.51 
Government Finance Officer Assoc. membership dues 170.00 
Graham Tire Co. tires 281.19 
Graybar Electric supplies 296.50 
Great Northern Environment repairs 2,943.24 
Gregg Peters freight 1,346.40 
Gregg Peters rent 937.50 
Guarantee Oil Co Inc supplies 114.73 
Hach Co repairs 1,356.60 



17 
 

Hartington Tree LLC stump grinding 1,877.00 
Hauger Lawn Service mowing 128.00 
Hawkins Inc chemicals 6,262.57 
HD Supply Waterworks supplies 7,964.58 
Herren-Schempp Building supplies 140.39 
Hewlett-Packard Company printer 200.00 
Hillyard Floor Care Supply supplies 31.48 
Hy Vee Food Store supplies 250.24 
Imprints Label & Decal supplies 190.00 
In Control, Inc professional services 499.84 
Independence Waste waste hauling/toilet rental 1,549.70 
Ingram books 2,906.59 
International Public Mgmt Assoc. testing materials 282.00 
Intoximeters supplies 600.00 
Iseler Demolition, Inc water tower removal 18,848.00 
Jacks Uniform & Eqpt uniform 1,250.74 
Jerry's Chevrolet Buick Gm parts/repairs 1,522.07 
Jimmy Johns meeting meal 100.52 
John A Conkling Dist. merchandise 9,187.95 
Johnson Brothers Famous Brands merchandise 23,640.81 
Johnson Controls repairs/maintenance 2,901.46 
Jones Food Center supplies 1,637.42 
Kalins Indoor Comfort repairs 125.61 
Karsten Mfg Corp merchandise 1,828.83 
Kyle Blake wellness center/boot reimb 225.00 
Lakeside Equipment parts 1,234.00 
Laynes World plaque/photo plate 24.10 
Leggette, Brashears & Graham professional services 5,122.41 
Life-Assist, Inc supplies 135.00 
Lincoln Republic Insurance insurance 470.11 
Lisa Inglis refund swim lessons fee 20.00 
Living Here subscription 17.00 
Locators And Supplies, Inc supplies 1,347.51 
Longs Propane Inc propane 30.00 
LP Gill, Inc tire disposal 936.00 
M & M Construction LLC concrete work 24,321.64 
Mainland Engraving LLC medals/ribbons 73.80 
Malloy Electric parts 139.63 
Marks Machinery parts 101.94 
Mart Auto Body towing 375.00 
Marty Gilbertson repairs 559.98 
Matheson Tri-Gas, Inc oxygen 418.33 
McCulloch Law Office professional services 1,035.68 



18 
 

Mead Lumber supplies 112.46 
Med-Media annual maintenance 510.00 
Medical Waste Transport, Inc medical waste disposal 213.41 
Merrick Industries repairs 4,974.73 
Micro Marketing LLC supplies 40.00 
Midwest Alarm Co alarm monitoring 416.00 
Midwest Building Maintenance mat svc 454.95 
Midwest Ready Mix & Equipment flowable fill 2,709.04 
Midwest Turf & Irrigation parts 2,143.78 
Miller & Sons Golf Cars, LLC parts 69.92 
Minn Municipal Utility Assoc. 3rd qtr safety mgmt program 5,925.00 
Missouri Valley Maintenance repairs 1,288.60 
Mitchell Park & Recreation registration 450.00 
Moore Welding & Mfg supplies 306.00 
National Arbor Day Foundation membership 20.00 
Netsys+ repairs/professional services 1,907.94 
New York Life insurance 84.02 
Newman Traffic Signs supplies 129.27 
Nike Inc merchandise 1,454.99 
Northland supplies 288.00 
Office Systems Co copier contract/copies 495.45 
Okesports, Inc merchandise 802.53 
Okoboji Wines-SD merchandise 1,014.00 
Overhead Door Of Sioux City garage door 1,826.00 
P&K Golf Supply, LLC merchandise 749.36 
Pauls Plumbing repairs 404.77 
PCC, Inc commission ambulance 2,738.36 
Penguin Random House LLC books 56.25 
Pennington County Sheriff evaluation 400.00 
Penworthy Company books 738.00 
Peoplefacts, LLC professional services 13.40 
Pete Lien & Sons, Inc chemicals 7,472.99 
Pitney Bowes, Inc supplies 203.56 
Pomps Tire Service, Inc. tires 11,397.30 
Precision Lawn Care mowing/junk/debris removal 828.75 
Pressing Matters supplies 394.00 
Prestige Flag flags 542.62 
Presto-X-Company inspection/treatment 93.30 
Print Source supplies 429.50 
Proefrock Electric Inc install controllers 175.00 
Queen City Wholesale merchandise 750.74 
Quill supplies 2,347.81 
Racom Corporation contract coverage 1,719.85 



19 
 

Rapid City Medical Center pre-employment exam 162.00 
Recorded Books, Inc books 714.27 
Regent Book Co. books 16.01 
Reinhart Foodservice, LLC supplies 1,525.65 
Relab Software, LLC software maintenance 1,040.00 
Republic National Distributing merchandise 11,217.45 
Ri-Tech Industrial Product supplies 155.00 
Sanford Health Plan participation fees 57.00 
Sanitation Products parts 1,810.24 
SD Chapter IAAI registration 200.00 
SD Dept Of Public Safety teletype service 3,090.00 
SD Retirement System contributions 50,328.36 
SD State Historical Society membership 35.00 
SDN Communications repairs 530.50 
Servall Towel & Linen shop towels 16.80 
Sign Pro wrap & decals 1,000.00 
Stan Houston Eqpt Co parts 93.11 
Standard Ready Mix Concrete supplies 459.00 
Stewart Oil-Tire Co repairs 195.00 
Sturdevants Auto Parts parts 1,728.58 
Susan Rolfes 3d printer reimbursement 1,519.80 
Terex Utilities, Inc supplies 4,000.75 
The New Sioux City Iron Co supplies 142.55 
The Walking Billboard fleece jackets/shirts 303.00 
Titleist Drawer Cs merchandise 698.44 
Todd Halverson safety boots reimbursement 100.00 
Topkote Inc chip sealing 67,170.08 
Town Of Volin refund landfill overpayment 7.84 
Treasurer-State unclaimed property 959.50 
Tri Tech Sales parts 730.39 
Tri-B-Trim Shop repairs 420.00 
True Value supplies/lawn mower 3,813.55 
Turner Excavation cottage water main 17,589.83 
Tyler Zimmerman meals reimbursement 61.00 
Ultramax supplies 229.00 
United Parcel Service shipping 91.83 
United Way contributions 537.50 
Univar USA Inc soda ash 15,030.24 
Valiant Vineyards merchandise 194.00 
Vast Broadband 911 circuit/dialup service 1,416.70 
Veolia Environmental Service haul electronics 7,838.47 
Verizon Wireless wireless communication 1,632.48 
Vermillion Ace Hardware supplies 710.78 



20 
 

Vermillion Area Arts Council funding 5,569.04 
Vermillion Equine Center online registration 111.20 
Vermillion Youth Football online registration 3,925.68 
Visa/First Bank & Trust fuel/lodging/supplies 5,827.97 
Wal-Mart Community supplies 1,173.90 
Walker Construction storm sewer hookup 586.50 
Walt's Homestyle Foods, Inc merchandise 162.00 
Weedcope, Inc treatment 410.00 
Wesco Distribution, Inc supplies 1,020.00 
Yankton Fire & Safety extinguisher recharge 75.00 
Yankton Janitorial Supply supplies 250.35 
Yankton Medical Clinic pre-employment exams 80.00 
Yankton Winnelson Co supplies 266.90 
Zee Medical Service supplies 217.00 
Zimco Supply Co supplies 8,897.50 
Emma Fraisier Bright Energy Rebate 30.00 
Lisa Hazlett Bright Energy Rebate 30.00 
Scott Ouellette Bright Energy Rebate 30.00 
Michael Carlson Bright Energy Rebate 30.00 
Dave Stammer Bright Energy Rebate 70.13 
St. Thomas More Newman Center Bright Energy Rebate 855.55 
Wayne James Bright Energy Rebate 60.00 
Dave Berg Bright Energy Rebate 30.00 
William Dendinger Bright Energy Rebate 30.00 
Cheryl Burbach Bright Energy Rebate 350.00 
Kalins Indoor Comfort Bright Energy Rebate 100.00 
 
Alderman Price seconded the motion. Motion carried 9 to 0. Mayor Powell 
declared the motion adopted. 
 
12. Consensus Agenda 
 
A. Set a public hearing date of September 21, 2015 for a special permit 
to exceed permissible sound levels by no more than 50% for W.H. Over 
Museum at 1110 North University on October 9 & 10, 2015 for 
Oktoberfest. 
 
B. Set a public hearing date of September 21, 2015 for a special daily 
malt beverage and wine license for Vermillion Area Chamber & 
Development Company, Inc. on or about October 9 & 10, 2015 at 1110 
North University for Oktoberfest. 
 
C. Set a bid opening date of Wednesday September 30, 2015 for the sale 
of a surplus Police SUV. 



21 
 

282-15 
Alderman Collier-Wise moved approval of the consensus agenda. Alderman       
Price seconded the motion. Motion carried 9 to 0. Mayor Powell declared 
the motion adopted. 
 
13. Adjourn 
 
283-15 
Alderman Ward moved to adjourn the Council Meeting at 7:51 p.m.  
Alderman Erickson seconded the motion. Motion carried 9 to 0. Mayor 
Powell declared the motion adopted. 
 
Dated at Vermillion, South Dakota this 8th day of September, 2015. 
 
        THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY 
        OF VERMILLION, SOUTH DAKOTA    
        BY____________________________ 
                                           John E. (Jack) Powell, Mayor     
ATTEST: 
BY___________________________________ 
  Michael D. Carlson, Finance Officer 
 
Published once at the approximate cost of ___________. 
 



 
 
Unapproved Minutes  
Council Special Session 
September 15, 2015 
Tuesday 2:00 p.m. 
 
The special session of the City Council, City of Vermillion, South 
Dakota was held on Tuesday, September 15, 2015 at 2:00 p.m. at the 
City Hall second floor large conference room.   
 
1. Roll Call 
 
Present: Collier-Wise, Erickson, Holland, Clarene Meins, Price, 
Willson, Mayor Powell 
 
Absent: Holly Meins, Ward 
 
2. Resolution approving grant offer for Airport Improvement Program 
for design engineering with the FAA for reconstruction of the apron 
 
Jose Dominguez, City Engineer, reported that the existing airport 
capital improvement plan and the 2015 budget for the airport have 
the design for the reconstruction of the apron starting this year. 
Jose stated that the grant agreement stipulates how the funding will 
be made and also has criteria that need to be followed during the 
development of the design plan. Jose noted that, although the format 
of the grant agreement is different, the City has entered into 
similar agreements for every project that has been completed at the 
airport. Jose stated that the State will still be administering the 
reimbursements and will also handle any submittals required by the 
Federal government. Jose reported that the agreement was received on 
Friday and needs to be approved and returned to the FAA today to 
obtain the Federal funding.  Jose stated that he has prepared a 
resolution to accept the grant offer. Jose stated that the City will 
be paying the contract and then reimbursed 90% federal and 5% state 
for project costs. Discussion followed. 
 
284-15 
After reading the same once, Alderman Willson moved adoption of the 
following: 
 

RESOLUTION 
ACCEPTING THE GRANT OFFER FOR THE AIRPORT IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM FOR 
THE DESIGN ENGINEERING FOR THE RECONSTRUCTION OF THE APRON BETWEEN 

THE FAA AND THE CITY OF VERMILLION 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Vermillion wishes to complete the engineering 
design for the reconstruction of the apron by utilizing a 
combination of Local, State and Federal Funds, and; 



 
WHEREAS, the Governing Body of the City of Vermillion is asked by 
the United States Department of Transportation Federal Aviation 
Administration to approve the above mentioned grant agreement by 
resolution, and; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Governing Body of the City 
of Vermillion accepts the Grant Agreement between the United States 
Department of Transportation Federal Aviation Administration and the 
City of Vermillion for Project 3-46-0056-011-2015. 
 
Dated at Vermillion, South Dakota this 15th day of September 2015. 
 
      THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY   
      OF VERMILLION, SOUTH DAKOTA 
      By_________________________________ 
       John E. (Jack) Powell, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
By___________________________________ 
 Michael D. Carlson, Finance Officer 
 
The motion was seconded by Alderman Clarene Meins. Discussion 
followed and the question of the adoption of the Resolution was 
presented for a vote of the Governing Body. 7 members voted in favor 
of and 0 members voted in opposition to the Resolution. Mayor Powell 
declared that the Resolution was adopted. 
 
3. Adjourn 
 
285-15 
Alderman Holland moved to adjourn the Council special session at 
2:03 p.m. Alderman Collier-Wise seconded the motion. Motion carried 
7 to 0. Mayor Powell declared the motion adopted. 
 
Dated at Vermillion, South Dakota this 15th day of September, 2015. 
 

THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY 
OF VERMILLION, SOUTH DAKOTA    

BY____________________________ 
                                         John E. (Jack) Powell, 

Mayor     
ATTEST: 
BY___________________________________ 
  Michael D. Carlson, Finance Officer 
 
Published once at the approximate cost of ___________. 
 



 
  6. Public Hearings; item a 

 

   
 Council Agenda Memo 

 
From: Mike Carlson, Finance Officer 
 

Meeting: September 21, 2015 
 

Subject: Special permit to exceed permissible sound levels by no more than 50% for 
W.H. Over Museum on October 9 &10, 2015 between 5:00 p.m. and 11:00 
p.m. at 1110 N. University for Oktoberfest public celebration 

 

Presenter: Mike Carlson 
 
Background: Tim Bellis with the VCDC, in working with Dr. Larry Bradley of the W.H. 
Over Museum, has applied for a special permit to exceed allowable noise levels for an 
Oktoberfest event scheduled for October 9 &10, 2015 from 5:00 p.m. until 11:00 p.m. at 
1110 N. University Street. Included is a copy of the application, diagram and notice of 
the hearing. 
 
The city noise ordinance is as follows: 
 
Sec. 90.01.  Noises prohibited. 
 

(a) General prohibitions: In addition to the specific prohibitions outlined below, it shall be unlawful for any person to 
make, continue, or cause to be made or continued any loud or unusual noise so as to disturb the peace of the public, 
any neighborhood, any business operation, family, lawful assembly of persons, or any person by committing any act 
or acts of disturbance within the limits of the City of Vermillion. 

(b) The following acts are declared to be in violation of this chapter. 

1) Sound equipment prohibited: Except for emergency vehicles, it shall be unlawful for any person to operate or 
cause to be operated upon the streets or public places in the city a sound truck or car with sound amplification 
equipment in operation.  “Sound truck” as used herein means any vehicle having thereon or attached thereto 
any sound amplification equipment. “Sound amplification equipment” as used herein means any machine or 
device for the amplification of the human voice, music or other sound, but shall not include radio or warning 
devices on vehicles used for traffic warning or control purposes. 

2) Stereos, radios, television sets, musical instruments and similar devices: 

a. Using, operating or permitting the use or operation of any stereo, radio, musical instrument, television, 
phonograph, drum or other machine or device for the production or reproduction of sound, except as 
provided for in paragraph (1) above, in such a manner as to violate this section or cause a noise 
disturbance. 

b. The operating of any such device between the hours of 11:00 p.m. and 7:00 a.m. the following day in such 
a manner as to be plainly audible at the property boundary of the source or plainly audible at fifty (50) feet 
from such device when operated within a vehicle parked on a public right-of-way or when operated from 
within a private residence. 



 
  6. Public Hearings; item a 

 

3) Maximum permissible sound levels: It shall be unlawful for any person to operate or permit the operation of 
any stationary source of sound in such a manner as to create a sound pressure level during any ten-minute 
measurement period which exceeds the limits set forth for the following receiving land use districts when 
measured at the boundary or at any point within the property affected by the noise.  Sound level measurements 
shall be made at a distance of fifty (50) feet from source with a sound level meter of type 2 or better, using the 
“A” weighting scale, in accordance with standards promulgated by the American National Standards Institute. 

Use District 11:00 p.m.-6-00 a.m. 6-00 a.m.-11:00 p.m. 
Residential 50 dB(A) 55dB(A) 
Commercial 55 dB(A) 60dB(A) 
Industrial & Agricultural 75 dB(A) 80dB(A) 
 

(c) It shall be a violation of this section if the sound which is measured creates a sound pressure level greater than the 
levels set forth for the receiving land use district for ninety (90) per cent of the time in any measurement period, 
such as the level exceeded for nine (9) minutes of a ten-minute period. 

(d) Special Permit; the City Council may, following a Public Hearing, issue a Special Permit to exceed allowable sound 
levels by not more than 50% of the allowable limit within the Use District, in a suitable location with appropriate 
facilities, during the allowable time. It shall be required of any applicant for a Special Permit to demonstrate that the 
event for which the permit is requested be of public benefit. An applicant shall submit a diagram clearly showing 
the sound level projections beginning at a point fifty (50) feet from the source, and continuing out through a radius 
of two hundred (200) feet from the source. Application for a Special Permit shall be made with the City Finance 
Officer, and shall be accompanied with an application fee of $25.00. Application for a Special Permit shall be 
completed no later than 30 days prior to the proposed event, and it shall contain all applicable information relative 
to the nature and purpose of the event.  (Ord. No. 1100, 10-1-01) 

(e) Semi-tractors; prohibited noises: It shall be unlawful for any person within the city limits of Vermillion, to make, or 
cause to be made, loud or disturbing or offensive noises with any mechanical devices operated by compressed air 
and used for purposes of assisting braking on any semi-tractor, except for the aversion of imminent danger. (Ord. 
No. 1102, 10-15-01) 

 
Violation: Any person violating any provision of this section may be punished by a fine of not more than one hundred 
dollars ($100.00) or by imprisonment not to exceed thirty (30) days, or by both such fine and imprisonment. Each day such 
violation is committee or permitted to continue shall constitute a separate offense and shall be punishable as such. 

 
Discussion: The diagram map for the malt beverage application indicates that the stage 
and sound system will be south of the museum facing toward the south.  
 
The City Council will need to determine, at the public hearing, if it is in a suitable 
location, with appropriate facilities, during the allowable time, and if the applicant can 
demonstrate the public benefit of the event. Relevant questions, for a public gathering, 
when a noise permit is sought, include the availability of restroom facilities, clean up of 
the area, and disposal of waste. 
 
Financial Consideration: The $25 fee for the special permit has been paid. 
 
Conclusion/Recommendations: Administration recommends issuance of the special 
permit unless information is presented at the public hearing that indicates that there will 
be problems related to the noise. 









 
  6. Public Hearings; item b 

 

    
 Council Agenda Memo 

 
From: Mike Carlson, Finance Officer 
 

Meeting: September 21, 2015 
 

Subject: Special daily malt beverage and wine license for Vermillion Area Chamber 
of Commerce and Development Company on or about October 9 & 10, 
2015 at 1110 N. University Street for W.H. Over Museum Oktoberfest 
event 

 

Presenter: Mike Carlson 
 
Background: VCDC has submitted an application for a special daily malt beverage and 
wine license for the W. H. Over Museum Oktoberfest event on October 9 and 10, 2015 at 
the museum which is located at 1110 N. University Street. 
 
City ordinance on special daily licenses reads as follows: 

 
§ 112.18  SPECIAL ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE LICENSES ISSUED IN CONJUNCTION WITH SPECIAL EVENTS. 
 

(A) The City Council may grant, after public hearing, a special on-sale malt beverage and/or a special on-sale wine 
license to a civic, charitable, educational, veterans, or fraternal organization in conjunction with a special event. 

(B) The City Council may grant, after public hearing, a special off-sale package wine dealers license to a civic, 
charitable, educational, veterans, or fraternal organization in conjunction with a special event. A special off-sale 
package wine dealers licensee may only sell wine manufactured by a farm winery that is licensed pursuant to SDCL 
Ch. 35-12. 

(C) Any license issued pursuant to this section shall be issued to the person and the location specified on the application. 
Any license issued pursuant to this section may be issued for a period of time established by the municipality. 
However, no period of time may exceed 15 consecutive days. The granting of the special license shall be subject to 
such conditions and restrictions as the City Council may deem appropriate and consistent with state law. 

(D) The fee for such special licenses shall be set by resolution of the City Council. 
 
State Statute for the special daily licenses is as follows: 

 
35-4-124.   Special alcoholic beverage licenses issued in conjunction with special events. Any municipality or county may 
issue: 
 

(1) A special malt beverage retailers license in conjunction with a special event within the municipality or county to any 
civic, charitable, educational, fraternal, or veterans organization or any licensee licensed pursuant to subdivision 35-
4-2(4), (6), or (16) in addition to any other licenses held by the special events license applicant; 

(2) A special on-sale wine retailers license in conjunction with a special event within the municipality or county to any 
civic, charitable, educational, fraternal, or veterans organization or any licensee licensed pursuant to subdivision 35-
4-2(4), (6), or (12) or chapter 35-12 in addition to any other licenses held by the special events license applicant; 

(3) A special on-sale license in conjunction with a special event within the municipality or county to any civic, 
charitable, educational, fraternal, or veterans organization or any licensee licensed pursuant to subdivision 35-4-2(4) 
or (6) in addition to any other licenses held by the special events license applicant; or 



 
  6. Public Hearings; item b 

 

(4) A special off-sale package wine dealers license in conjunction with a special event within the municipality or county 
to any civic, charitable, educational, fraternal, or veterans organization or any licensee licensed pursuant to 
subdivision 35-4-2(3), (5), (12), (17A), or (19) or chapter 35-12 in addition to any other licenses held by the special 
events license applicant. A special off-sale package wine dealers licensee may only sell wine manufactured by a 
farm winery that is licensed pursuant to chapter 35-12. 
 

Any license issued pursuant to this section may be issued for a period of time established by the municipality or county. 
However, no period of time may exceed fifteen consecutive days. No public hearing is required for the issuance of a license 
pursuant to this section if the person applying for the license holds an on-sale alcoholic beverage license or a retail malt 
beverage license in the municipality or county or holds an operating agreement for a municipal on-sale alcoholic beverage 
license, and the license is to be used in a publicly-owned facility. The local governing body shall establish rules to regulate 
and restrict the operation of the special license, including rules limiting the number of licenses that may be issued to any 
person within any calendar year. 
 
Discussion: The notice of public hearing, report from Police Chief, and diagram with 
event explanation are attached. VCDC Tourism Director Tim Bellis stated that President 
Abbott has no objections to the event. 

 
Financial Consideration: The City has received the $15 per day licensing fee and the 
$15 advertising fee from the applicant for a sum total of $45. 
 
Conclusion/Recommendations: Administration recommends approving the issuance of 
the special daily malt beverage and wine license on or about October 9 and 10, 2015 
unless additional information is provided at the public hearing. 









 
   7. Old Business; item a 

 

  
 Council Agenda Memo 

 
From Mike Carlson, Finance Officer 
 

Meeting: September 21, 2015 
 

Subject: Second Reading of Ordinance No. 1330- 2016 Appropriations 
 

Presenter: John Prescott, City Manager 
 
Background: SDCL 9-21-2 addresses the need for the City Council to adopt an annual 
budget:  
 

The governing body of each municipality shall, no later than its first regular meeting in September 
of each year or within ten days thereafter, introduce the annual appropriation ordinance for the 
ensuing fiscal year, in which it shall appropriate the sums of money necessary to meet all lawful 
expenses and liabilities of the municipality. The ordinance shall specify the function and subfunction 
as prescribed by the Department of Legislative Audit for which the appropriations are made and the 
amount appropriated for each function and subfunction, which amount shall be appropriated from 
the proper fund. It is not necessary to appropriate revenue to be expended from an enterprise or trust 
and agency fund if the fund is not supported or subsidized by revenue derived from the annual 
appropriated tax levy. However, an annual budget for these funds shall be developed and published 
no later than December thirty-first of each year. 

 
Discussion: The City Manager prepared and presented a budget to the City Council at the 
August 3 meeting. The City Council reviewed the proposed budget during special 
meetings held on August 11 and 13, 2015. The City Council’s revisions from the budget 
meetings have been incorporated into the appropriation ordinance. The general fund 
appropriation from reserve remained the same at $1,258,914 which includes $1,000,000 
for the pool, $31,325 for Norbeck Street special assessment interest, $10,000 for entrance 
signage and $217,589 to meet General Fund obligations. 
 
The 2016 budget included property tax revenues of $2,190,500 that includes using an 
increase of 1% plus growth over 2015 where the state statute allows 1.5% plus growth. 
The budget includes a 2.5% cost of living adjustment for employee wages. The general 
fund has $80,000 for street maintenance work such as asphalt patching, traffic paint and 
sealant material. While the overall amount to be spent on streets will increase in 2016, the 
amount from general fund decreased as chip sealing costs has been moved to second 
penny sales tax fund. 
 
Rate increases have been included for electric, water, wastewater, curbside recycling and 
golf course to offset increased operating costs. 



 
   7. Old Business; item a 

 

 
The budget includes the purchase of new library materials, hike/bike path repair or 
rerouting funding and funding for the Vermillion Now 2! pledge. 
 
Financial Consideration: Approval of the first reading of the 2016 Appropriations 
Ordinance at the September 8th meeting was one step in providing for 2016 operations 
and in complying with State law to adopt an appropriations ordinance. 
 
Conclusion/Recommendations: Administration recommends approval of the second 
reading of the 2016 Appropriations Ordinance No. 1330. As this is the second reading of 
the ordinance, a roll call vote is required. 



ORDINANCE NO. 1330
2016 APPROPRIATION ORDINANCE

AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING the 2016 Appropriations Ordinance for the 
City of Vermillion, South Dakota.

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING BODY of the City of Vermillion that the following 
sums are appropriated to meet the obligations of the municipality.

2016 Budget
GENERAL FUND

REVENUES:
General Property Taxes 2,186,500
Sales Tax 1,695,000
Penalties & Interest 4,000
Licenses & Permits 148,200
Cable TV Franchise 105,000
State Intergovernmental 315,100
County Intergovernmental 94,900
Charges for Goods & Services 557,500
Fines & Forfeits 38,650
Miscellaneous Revenues 217,525
TOTAL GENERAL FUND REVENUES 5,362,375

EXPENDITURES:
Policy & Administration:
General Government 569,705
Finance Office 184,007
Engineering 314,760
Planning & Zoning 800
Code Compliance 205,538
Community Promotion 92,325
Total Policy & Administration 1,367,135

Public Safety & Security:
Police Administration & Invest. 491,105
Police Patrol 1,377,843
Fire & Rescue 259,503
Emergency Management 2,200
Ambulance 343,941
Total Public Safety & Security 2,474,592

Maintenance & Transportation:
Municipal Garage 140,669
Municipal Service Center 34,550
Street Department 661,968
Snow Removal 73,092
Sweeping & Mowing 114,061
Carpentry 31,148
City Hall Maintenance 80,650
Old Landfill Maintenance 11,000
Airport 102,315
Total Maintenance & Transportation 1,249,453

1



Human Development & Leisure Services:
Library 593,870
Parks & Forestry 308,227
Swimming Pool 124,584
Recreation 176,478
Mosquito Control 19,657
National Guard Armory Center 53,918
Total Human Development & Leisure 1,276,734
TOTAL GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES 6,367,914

GENERAL FUND NEEDS (1,005,539)

Transfer to 911 Fund - Communications (278,217)
Transfer to Prentis Park Debt Service (116,000)
Transfer to Prentis Park Capital Project (1,000,000)
Transfer from Electric Fund 803,117
Transfer from Water Fund 2,306
Transfer from Sewer Fund 1,402
Transfer from Liquor Fund 194,200
Transfer from Capital Projects 8,000
Transfer from Utilities Engineering Fees 136,387
Transfer from BID #1 1,430
Transfer to Equipment Replacement (6,000)
Appropriation from Reserve 1,258,914
GENERAL FUND BALANCE 0

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

SECOND CENT SALES TAX FUND
Revenues 1,808,500

Expenditures - Second Cent Sales Tax 583,850
Transfer to Airport Capital Projects (30,000)
Transfer to TIF #6 Debt Service (55,845)
Transfer to City Hall Debt Service Fund (348,710)
Transfer to Bike Path Capital Projects (200,000)
Transfer to Prentis Park Capital Projects (731,000)
Transfer to Equipment Replacement (13,500)
Appropriation from Reserve 154,405
SECOND CENT SALES TAX FUND BALANCE 0

PARKS IMPROVEMENT FUND
Revenues-Recreation Fees 3,010

Expenditures - Parks Improvements 3,010
PARKS IMPROVEMENT FUND BALANCE 0

BBB SALES TAX FUND
Revenues 344,080

Expenditures 316,300
Appropriation to Reserve (27,780)
BBB SALES TAX FUND BALANCE 0

2



911 FUND -COMMUNICATIONS
Revenues 278,216

Expenditures 556,433
Transfer from General Fund 278,217
911FUND FUND BALANCE 0

BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT #1

Revenues 71,500

Expenditures 60,000
Transfer to General Fund 1,430
Appropriation to Reserve (10,070)
Business Improvement District #1 Fund Balance 0

STORMWATER MAINTENANCE FUND
Revenues - Stormwater Fees 214,550

Expenditures: 75,000
Appropriation to Reserve (139,550)
STORMWATER FEE FUND BALANCE 0

LIBRARY FINE AND GIFT FUND
Revenues- Library Fine & Gifts 13,015

Expenditures - Library 7,500
Appropriation to Reserve (5,515)
LIBRARY FINE AND GIFT FUND BALANCE 0

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

DEBT SERVICE--SPECIAL ASSESSMENT FUND
Revenues 39,653

Expenditures 39,653
Interfund Loan 162,000
Transfer to Capital Projects (162,000)
DS SPECIAL ASSESSMENT FUND BALANCE 0

DEBT SERVICE-- TIF District No. 5
Revenues 27,000

Expenditures 27,000
DEBT  SERVICE - TIF 5 FUND BALANCE 0

DEBT SERVICE-- TIF District No. 6
Revenues 4,775

Expenditures 60,620
Transfer from Second Cent Sales Tax Fund 55,845
DEBT  SERVICE - TIF 6 FUND BALANCE 0

3



DEBT SERVICE - CITY HALL
Revenues 2,000

Expenditures 350,710
Transfer from Second Cent Sales Tax Fund 348,710
DEBT  SERVICE - CITY HALL FUND BALANCE 0

DEBT SERVICE - PRENTIS PARK BOND
Revenues 116,000

Expenditures 109,565
Appropriation to Reserve (6,435)
DEBT  SERVICE - PRENTIS PARK BOND FUND BALANCE 0

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND - SPECIAL ASSESSMENT
Expenditures 150,000
Transfer to General Fund (8,000)
Transfer from Debt Service 162,000
Appropriation to Reserve (4,000)
CP SPECIAL ASSESSMENT FUND BALANCE 8,000

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND - AIRPORT
Revenues 470,000

Expenditures 500,000
Transfer from Second Cent Sales Tax Fund 30,000
CP AIRPORT FUND BALANCE 0

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND - PRENTIS PARK
Revenues 3,150,000

Expenditures 4,881,000
Transfer from General Fund 1,000,000
Transfer from Second Cent Sales Tax Fund 731,000
CP PRENTIS PARK FUND BALANCE 0

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND - BIKE PATH
Revenues 80,000

Expenditures 280,000
Transfer from Second Cent Sales Tax Fund 200,000
CP BIKE PATH FUND BALANCE 0

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND - MAIN STREET SIGNALS
Revenues 24,000

Expenditures 24,000
CP W MAIN MILL & OVERLAY FUND BALANCE 0

4



INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS (Information Only)
Copier - Fax- Equipment

Unemployment Postage Custodial Replacement
Fund Fund Fund Fund

Revenues
Internal Dept Charges 18,150 92,000 433,691     
Interest on Investments 130 2,300         
Other Revenues 75,500
Total Revenues 130 18,150 92,000 511,491     

Expenditures
Personnel 87,789
Operating Expenses 130 16,350 3,427
Capital 500 689,500
Total Expenditures 130 16,350 91,716 689,500     

Transfer Out (In) (28,100)      
(To) From Reserve (1,800) (284) 149,909
Fund Balance 0 0 0 0

UTILITY AND ENTERPRISE FUNDS (Information Only) Curbside
Electric Water Wastewater Joint Powers Liquor Golf Course Recycling

Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund
Revenues
Sales 5,900,000  1,479,000  1,563,000     1,329,600     1,483,000 731,300     120,000    
Surcharge 776,000     270,000     332,000        
Other Revenue 100,000     52,700       8,800            24,000          75,000       200           
Interest 152,950     4,320         4,042            1,500            140           4,000         250           
Total Revenues 6,928,950  1,806,020  1,907,842     1,355,100     1,483,140 810,300     120,450    

Expenditures
Personnel 1,014,278  649,640     501,722        533,553        376,710     98,371      
Operating Expenses 3,945,824  554,297     629,734        871,830        1,266,949 415,316     12,900      
Capital 660,504     152,316     418,940        429,345        2,000        13,000       36,250      
Debt Service 187,105     251,608        196,814        8,408        
Debt Service Surchar 572,463 235,669 291,013
Total Expenditures 6,193,069  1,779,027  2,093,017     2,031,542     1,268,949 805,026     155,929    

Transfers Out (884,950)    (38,583)      (37,279)         (194,200)   
Transfers In 9,000         
(To) From Reserve 140,069 11,590 222,454 676,442 (19,991) (5,274) 35,479
Fund Balance 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

The City Manager is directed to certify the following dollar amount of tax levies
in ordinance to the Clay County Auditor:  $2,190,500

Dated at Vermillion, South Dakota this 21th day of September, 2015

5



ATTEST:

BY __________________________________
         Michael D. Carlson, Finance Officer

First Reading: September 8, 2015
Second Reading: September 21, 2015
Publish: October 3, 2015
Effective: October 23, 2015

                                                                 John E. (Jack) Powell, Mayor

                                                        THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY OF
                                                                 VERMILLION, SOUTH DAKOTA

                                                               by __________________________

6



 
  7. Old Business; item b 

 

   
 Council Agenda Memo 

 
From: Mike Carlson, Finance Officer 
 

Meeting: September 21, 2015 
 

Subject: Second Reading of Ordinance No. 1331 – 2015 Revised Appropriations 
 

Presenter: John Prescott, City Manager 
 
Background: In order for the City Council to make changes to the 2015 budget, adopted 
in September 2014, a revised or supplemental appropriations ordinance is required. The 
proposed changes were presented to the City Council during the budget meetings on 
August 11 and 13, 2015. The first reading of the ordinance to make revisions to the 2015 
budget took place on September 8th. 
 
Discussion: The revised appropriations ordinance includes changes and adjustments 
made to the 2015 budget based upon actual financial information obtained thus far in 
2015. Revenues and expenses are different in some instances versus what was anticipated 
last September. Prentis Park improvements for the baseball field restrooms and 
maintenance building were included in the 2014 budget but due to lack of contractors 
were not started until 2015. The Prentis Park Capital Improvement fund was 
supplemented to include a portion of the pool engineering. The electric department 
substation project was scheduled to be completed in 2014 but due to delays will be 
completed in 2015. The final payment from the bond proceeds to the VCDC for the final 
contribution on the Bliss Pointe improvements was made in 2015. 
 
In some cases, projects arose after the 2015 budget was adopted. In September 2014, the 
water main replacement on Cottage Avenue was not planned but due to water main 
breaks was moved up to 2015. The malt beverage mark up ordinance adopted in February 
2015 that was upheld by the voters was implemented in July 2015 so the estimated 
revenues and transfer to the Prentis Park Debt Service fund have been included in the 
revised 2015 budget. These items were not included in the adoption of the 2015 budget in 
September 2014 as they were unknown or procedural steps had yet to take place such as 
voter approval of the issuing of the General Obligation bond. 
 
Financial Consideration: For the revisions to become effective, the City Council will 
need to adopt the revised appropriations ordinance. The revised budget includes a smaller 
transfer to the General Fund from the General Fund reserve than originally budgeted. 
 



 
  7. Old Business; item b 

 

Conclusion/Recommendations: Administration recommends that the City Council 
approve the second reading of the 2015 Revised Appropriations Ordinance No. 1331. As 
this is the second reading of the ordinance, a roll call vote is required. 



ORDINANCE NO. 1331
2015 REVISED APPROPRIATION ORDINANCE

AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING the 2015  Revised Appropriations Ordinance for the 
City of Vermillion, South Dakota.

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING BODY of the City of Vermillion that the following 
sums are appropriated to meet the obligations of the municipality.

2015 Revised Budget
GENERAL FUND

REVENUES:
General Property Taxes 2,164,900
Sales Tax 1,648,000
Penalties & Interest 10,000
Licenses & Permits 190,200
Cable TV Franchise 110,000
State Intergovernmental 294,970
County Intergovernmental 94,900
Charges for Goods & Services 546,600
Fines & Forfeits 38,650
Miscellaneous Revenues 165,000
TOTAL GENERAL FUND REVENUES 5,263,220

EXPENDITURES:
Policy & Administration:
General Government 563,863
Finance Office 182,077
Engineering 305,140
Planning and Zoning 800
Code Compliance 204,219
Community Promotion 53,455
Total Policy & Administration 1,309,554

Public Safety & Security:
Police Administration & Invest. 461,457
Police Patrol 1,279,051
Fire & Rescue 249,705
Emergency Management 2,200
Ambulance 341,786
Total Public Safety & Security 2,334,199

Maintenance & Transportation:
Municipal Garage 137,595
Municipal Service Center 33,440
Street Department 716,673
Snow Removal 75,192
Sweeping & Mowing 111,135
Carpentry 30,615
City Hall Maintenance 79,000
Old Library Maintenance 1,900
Old Landfill Maintenance 11,000
Airport 92,236
Total Maintenance & Transportation 1,288,786

1



Human Development & Leisure Services:
Library 592,539
Parks & Forestry 297,062
Swimming Pool 118,920
Recreation 170,925
Mosquito Control 24,664
National Guard Armory Center 55,897
Total Human Development & Leisure 1,260,007
TOTAL GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES 6,192,546

GENERAL FUND NEEDS (929,326)

Transfer to 911 Fund (271,085)
Transfer to Prentis Park Debt Service (58,000)
Transfer to Equipment Replacement (6,000)
Transfer from Electric Fund 803,117
Transfer from Water Fund 2,306
Transfer from Sewer Fund 1,402
Transfer from Liquor Fund 194,200
Transfer from Capital Projects 17,012
Transfer from BID #1 1,430
Transfer from Utilities Engineering Fees 136,387
Appropriation from Reserve 108,557
GENERAL FUND BALANCE 0

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

SECOND CENT SALES TAX FUND
Revenues 1,660,650

Expenditures - Second Cent Sales Tax 396,000
Transfer to Bike Path Capital Projects (31,533)
Transfer to Airport Capital Projects (10,380)
Transfer to City Hall Debt Service Fund (352,041)
Transfer to TIF #6 Debt Service (55,845)
Transfer to Prentis Park Capital Projects (347,000)
Transfer to W. Main Capital Projects (173,000)
Appropriation to Reserve (294,851)
SECOND CENT SALES TAX FUND BALANCE 0

PARKS IMPROVEMENT FUND

Revenues-Recreation Fees 3,010

Expenditures - Parks Improvements 3,010
PARKS IMPROVEMENT FUND BALANCE 0

BBB SALES TAX FUND

Revenues 337,060

Expenditures 307,550
Appropriation to Reserve (29,510)
BBB SALES TAX FUND BALANCE 0

2



911 FUND -COMMUNICATIONS

Revenues 307,105

Expenditures 578,190
Transfer from General Fund 271,085
911FUND- FUND BALANCE 0

BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT #1

Revenues 71,500

Expenditures 85,000
Transfer to General Fund 1,430
Appropriation from Reserve 14,930
Business Improvement District #1 Fund Balance 0

STORMWATER MAINTENANCE FUND

Revenues - Stormwater Fees 220,900

Expenditures: 35,200
Appropriation from Reserve (185,700)
STORMWATER FEE FUND BALANCE 0

LIBRARY FINE AND GIFT FUND

Revenues- Library Fine & Gifts 11,215

Expenditures - Library 8,000
Appropriation to Reserve (3,215)
LIBRARY FINE AND GIFT FUND BALANCE 0

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

DEBT SERVICE--SPECIAL ASSESSMENT FUND

Revenues 27,559

Expenditures 27,559
Interfund Loan 517,599
Transfer to Capital Projects (517,599)
SPECIAL ASSESSMENT FUND BALANCE 0

DEBT SERVICE - TIF District No. 5

Revenues 204

Expenditures 204
DEBT  SERVICE - TIF 5 FUND BALANCE 0

3



DEBT SERVICE - TIF District No. 6

Revenues 4,775

Expenditures 60,620
Transfer from Second Cent Sales Tax Fund 55,845
DEBT  SERVICE - TIF 6 FUND BALANCE 0

DEBT SERVICE - City Hall

Revenues 2,000

Expenditures 354,041
Transfer from Second Cent Sales Tax Fund 352,041
DEBT  SERVICE - CITY HALL FUND BALANCE 0

DEBT SERVICE - Prentis Park Bond

Expenditures 0
Appropriation to Reserve (58,000)
Transfer from General Fund Malt Beverage 58,000

DEBT  SERVICE - PRENTIS PARK BOND FUND BALANCE 0

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND - SPECIAL ASSESSMENT

Revenues 615,311

Expenditures 100,000
Transfer to General Fund (17,012)
Appropriation to Reserve (498,299)
CP SPECIAL ASSESSMENT FUND BALANCE 0

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND - BIKE PATH

Expenditures 0
Transfer from Second Cent Sales Tax 31,533
Appropriation to Reserve (31,533)
CP BIKE PATH FUND BALANCE 0

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND - AIRPORT

Revenues 162,620

Expenditures 173,000
Transfer from Second Cent Sales Tax 10,380
CP AIRPORT FUND BALANCE 0

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND - PRENTIS PARK

Revenues

Expenditures 347,000
Transfer from Second Cent Sales Tax 347,000
CP PRENTIS PARK FUND BALANCE 0

4



CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND - TIF #6 BLISS POINTE

Expenditures 45,973
Appropriation from Reserve 45,973
CP TIF #6 BLISS POINT FUND BALANCE 0

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND - MAIN MILL/OVERLAY & SIGNALS

Revenues 324,000

Expenditures 497,000
Transfer from Second Cent Sales Tax 173,000
CP WEST MAIN MILL/OVERLAY & SIGNAL FUND BALANCE 0

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS (Information Only)
Copier - Fax- Equipment

Unemployment Postage Custodial Replacement
Fund Fund Fund Fund

Revenues
Internal Dept Charges 18,150 87,000 439,397       
Interest on Investments 40 2,200           
Other Revenues 16,200
Total Revenues 40 18,150 87,000 457,797       

Expenditures
Personnel 85,986
Operating Expenses 40 16,450 3,213
Capital 500 329,400
Total Expenditures 40 16,450 89,699 329,400       

Transfer (Out) In 6,000           
(To) From Reserve (1,700) 2,699 (134,397)

Fund Balance 0 0 0 0

UTILITY AND ENTERPRISE FUNDS (Information Only) Curbside
Electric Water Wastewater Joint Powers Liquor Golf Course Recycling

Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund
Revenues
Sales 5,580,000      1,425,000    1,526,000     1,243,600      1,456,000     710,400       112,000    
Surcharge 749,000         269,000       332,000        
Other Revenue 110,000         52,700         8,800            27,500           73,730         200           
Interest 150,950         4,540           4,064            1,650             140               4,000           210           
Grants 30,290
Total Revenues 6,589,950      1,751,240    1,870,864     1,303,040      1,456,140     788,130       112,410    

Expenditures
Personnel 982,277         598,351       486,829        514,443         364,172       94,463      
Operating Expenses 3,650,355      552,561       660,093        965,710         1,236,920     409,700       12,450      
Capital 1,173,867      285,420       134,300        359,000         11,162          18,937         250           
Debt Service 575,663         187,138       253,337        239,989         8,409        
Surcharge Debt Service 235,669 291,013
Total Expenditures 6,382,162      1,859,139    1,825,572     2,079,142      1,248,082     792,809       115,572    

Transfers Out (884,950)       (38,583)        (28,679)         (194,200)       
Transfers In 9,000             
(To) From Reserve 668,162 146,482 (16,613) 776,102 (13,858) 4,679 3,162

Fund Balance 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

5



Dated at Vermillion, South Dakota this 21th day of September, 2015.

ATTEST:

BY __________________________________
         Michael D. Carlson, Finance Officer

First Reading: September 8, 2015
Second Reading: September 21, 2015
Publish: October 3, 2015
Effective: October 23, 2015

                                                                 John E. (Jack) Powell, Mayor

                                                        THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY OF
                                                                 VERMILLION, SOUTH DAKOTA

                                                               by __________________________

6



 
  8. New Business; item a 

 

  
 Council Agenda Memo 

 
From: John Prescott, City Manager 
 

Meeting: September 21, 2015 
 

Subject: Tree Board reappointment 
 

Presenter: Mayor Jack Powell 
 
Background: By ordinance the City Council is charged with appointing members of the 
City Tree Board. 

§ 90.72 CITY TREE BOARD. 
(A) There is hereby created and established an advisory board to be known as the City Tree Board of the City of 

Vermillion. There shall be five (5) members of the City Tree Board in which board members are citizens and 
residents of Vermillion. They shall be appointed by the Mayor with the approval of the City Council. The Parks and 
Recreations Director shall recommend one (1) member to the board from staff; the Street Superintendent shall 
recommend one (1) member to the board from staff; one (1) member shall be currently serving on the City Council; 
and two (2) members shall be selected by the governing body from the residents of the City of Vermillion. 

(B) The term of the five (5) persons to be appointed shall be two (2) years except the terms of those representing the 
City Council and City employed staff shall expire at the expiration of their terms of office or employment. In the 
event that a vacancy shall occur during the term of any member, his or her successor shall be appointed for the 
unexpired portion of the term. 

(C) Members of the City Tree Board shall serve without compensation. 
(D) Subject to the control of the Governing Body of the City. 
(E) The City Tree Board shall choose its own officers and keep a journal of its proceedings.  A majority of the members 

shall be a quorum for the transactions of business.  Its purpose shall be to review, from time to time, conditions 
relating to tree and plant growth in the City and to recommend procedures and policies calculated to maintain and 
improve a healthy forestation program for the City. 

 

As noted, the Tree Board is comprised of five members, which includes two citizens and 
residents of Vermillion. The terms for the citizen members are for two (2) years. Clarence 
Pederson was appointed to a two-year term on the Tree Board in August 2014. Jim Brady 
was appointed to a one-year term in September 2014. 
 
Discussion: In addition to the two citizen members, the other current members of the 
Tree Board are Howard Willson, Pete Jahn, and Aaron Baedke. Jim Goblirsch serves as 
an ex-officio member of the board. As the Tree Board is just getting re-established, it was 
determined to be beneficial to maintain the same membership for at least another year. 
 
Financial Consideration: None. 
 
Conclusion/Recommendations: If City Council is comfortable with Jim Brady serving 
on the Tree Board, Administration recommends appointing him to serve on the City Tree 
Board for a full two-year term. 



 
  8. New Business; item b 

 

      
 Council Agenda Memo 

 
From: Andy Colvin, Assistant City Manager 
 

Meeting: September 21, 2015 
 

Subject: Amended Street closure request for USD Verm Town Bash 
 

Presenter: Andy Colvin 
 
Background: The Dakota Days Executive Board is sponsoring a community wide event 
associated with Dakota Days on Wednesday, September 30, 2015. In the initial request at 
the August 3rd City Council meeting, activities were planned using Market Street from W. 
Main Street to Kidder Street including the use of Ratingen Platz. The event includes 
inflatables and family activities from 5:00 p.m. to 8:00 p.m. and a street dance type event 
with a DJ from 8:00 p.m. to 11:00 p.m. All activities are open to the public and will be 
alcohol free. The City Council approved the request at the August 3rd meeting. 
 
Discussion: On September 17th, City staff was contacted about amending the request to 
also include a portion of Main Street between Prospect Street and High Street, which 
would be the section near Ratingen Platz.  The intersections at High and Prospect would 
remain open for traffic. 
 
The Police, Fire, and EMS Departments have been notified of the closure request and 
have found no safety concerns. 
 
Financial Consideration: None. 
 
Conclusion/Recommendations: Administration recommends that the City Council 
approve the temporary closing of Main Street from High Street to Prospect Street, in 
addition to the initial closing of Market Street from W. Main Street to Kidder Street on 
Wednesday, September 30, 2015 from 4:30 p.m. to midnight for the USD Dakota Days 
Executive Board community wide events. 





 
  8. New Business; item c 

 

      
 Council Agenda Memo 

 
From: Jose Dominguez, City Engineer 
 

Meeting:  September 21, 2015 
 

Subject: Report of Utilities Committee on amending Chapter 53 Water, Sewers, and 
Sewage Disposal, Sections 53.110 through 53.123, and Section 53.018 

 

Presenter: Jose Dominguez 
 
Background: The City of Vermillion Utilities Committee met on September 15, 2015 to 
review proposed sewer rate changes. The City has an ordinance that addresses how large 
users would be charged.  However, the ordinance needs to be brought up to date to ensure 
that the main constituents which are flow, biochemical oxygen demand (BOD), total 
suspended solids (TSS) and Kjendahl nitrogen (TKN) are treated at the Waste Water 
Plant are paid for by the users generating these types of constituents. 
 
Discussion: The ordinance presented to the Committee addressed several areas that 
needed to be brought current to fairly charge all of our users in case we had a large 
industrial/commercial user in town.  The proposed ordinance would address how the 
administrative/fixed fee was derived, how the cost associated with treating waste water is 
split amongst its constituents, how the different class users are determined, how the cost 
for each of the class users is calculated, and how the user’s charge may be modified. 
 
These updates will allow the City to more effectively charge for the use of the waste 
water facility.  For example, with the current ordinance the City would charge a large 
user for the actual amount of waste water constituents being treated while the residential 
user is being charged for a set amount of constituents treated. This created an unfair 
approach due to the fact that the waste water constituents created by the residential user 
more than likely are not as high as the set values. Additionally, the existing ordinance did 
not take into account the treatment of ammonia. The new ordinance will address this by 
charging for the treatment of ammonia through the TKN constituent. 
 
The minutes of the Utilities Committee are attached. 
 
Financial Consideration: None at this time. The proposed changes to the ordinance do 
not change the sanitary sewer rate for existing customers. The proposed ordinance will 
allow the revenue collected to meet the funds expended to treat the waste water.  
 



 
  8. New Business; item c 

 

Conclusion/Recommendations: The recommendation of the Utilities Committee to the 
City Council is to adopt the proposed ordinance and fee resolution. As the City Council 
cannot act on a report of a committee at the same meeting the report is received, the City 
Council will need to accept the report and request the ordinance to be considered at the 
October 5th meeting. The fee resolution would be presented at the same meeting as the 
second reading of the ordinance. 



City of Vermillion 
Utility Committee 
Tuesday September 15, 2015 
10:45 a.m. – City Hall first floor conference room 
 
The meeting of the City of Vermillion Utility Committee was held on Tuesday, September 15, 
2015 at 10:45 a.m. at city hall first floor conference room. 
 
Present: Willson, Ward, Erickson, Chairman Powell 
 
Also Present: John Prescott, Jose Dominguez, Mike Carlson 
 
Waste Water large user rate 
 
Jose Dominguez, City Engineer, handed out a proposed ordinance that would amend the current 
waste water ordinance to divide the current class of users into Class I that would be our current 
users and Class II would be large customers as determined by the flow (volume), biochemical 
oxygen demand (BOD), total suspended solids (TSS) and Kjendahl nitrogen (TKN).   Jose stated 
the proposed change is to have a large commercial or industrial rate and will not impact current 
waste water users.  Discussion followed on the proposed changes.  Jose reported that a resolution 
has been prepared to establish the rates for the Class II users with the Class I rate remaining 
unchanged. John Prescott reported that research started a number of years ago on this ordinance 
change when there was a large user inquiring about waste water rates for industrial users which 
we did not have.   Discussion followed on if this proposed change would have any impact on 
current users.  Jose and Mike said they would review the current largest users to determine if 
there would be any impact.  
 
Willson moved approval of the recommended changes to the waste water ordinance and 
resolution to implement the new rate and that the proposed changes be reported to the City 
Council.  Erickson seconded the motion.  Motion carried 4 to 0.   
 
With no other business for the committee Chairman Powell declared the meeting adjourned at 
11:20 a.m. 
 
 



 
  8. New Business; item d 

 

      
 Council Agenda Memo 

 
From: Jose Dominguez 
 

Meeting: September 21, 2015 
 

Subject: Resolution Supporting the City’s Transportation Alternatives Program 
Grant Application for a Possible Downtown Infrastructure Program 

 

Presenter: Jose Dominguez 
 
Background: Through the sidewalk repair project and the proposed improvements to the 
intersection of Main and Center/Court, the City received several inquiries about the 
possibility of having a larger downtown project. In order to see if there was any support 
for a project of this magnitude, the City held a number of public meetings to gather 
public input regarding possible downtown infrastructure projects. 
 
The Transportation Alternatives Program (TAP) grant through the Department of 
Transportation (DOT) would only cover some of the costs associated with the project.  
The grant is very competitive due to the limited amount of funds and number of 
applicants. 
 
Discussion: Staff began looking into the possibility of applying for a TAP grant soon 
after the first public meeting was held.  The grant is managed by the DOT and it only 
covers the cost of design and construction on alternative forms of transportation up to 
$400,000.  Additionally, the City would have to make a matching contribution of at least 
18.05% or $72,200. 
 
The proposed project at this time is only for the reconstruction of sidewalks along Main 
Street from Dakota Street to Market Street.  The proposed project would also cover Elm, 
Center, Prospect, Church, Court and Market Streets for one block from Main Street.  In 
order to be able to apply for multiple grants, and to make the project financially feasible, 
it will be split into three phases. The cost for each of the phases will be around the 
$500,000 mark. This cost would include the design engineering, construction cost and 
construction administration. The end result for each of the phases would be a sidewalk 
that meets all standards with a paver/colored concrete strip along the curb, larger bump-
outs and bicycles corrals at the intersections. 
 



 
  8. New Business; item d 

 

This grant would be for only the first phase which would be on Main Street from Dakota 
to just shy of Center Street. The intersection between Main and Center/Court Streets 
would be done with the intersection improvement project. 
 
The attached resolution is required by the State as part of the grant application.  The 
resolution shows support from the City Council for the described project.  The resolution 
also shows that the City Council is willing to provide a match of at least $72,200, or 
18.05% of $400,000. 
 
If the City were to be awarded a grant the City Council will have an option to accept or 
deny.  This resolution does not commit the Council to accepting the grant in the future. 
 
Financial Consideration: At this point there is no financial commitment. However, if the 
City was to be awarded a grant and the City accepts it, the City will have to provide at 
least $72,200 of the project, or 18.05% of the $400,000 grant.  This would be revised 
during budget revision session in 2016. 
 
Conclusion/Recommendations: Administration recommends that the City Council 
authorize the Mayor to sign the Resolution Supporting the City’s Transportation 
Alternatives Program Grant Application for a Possible Downtown Infrastructure 
Program. 



A RESOLUTION SUPPORTING THE CITY’S TRANSPORTATION ALTERNATIVES 
PROGRAM GRANT APPLICATION FOR POSSIBLE DOWNTOWN INFRASTRUCTURE 

PROJECT 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Vermillion understands the significance of making improvements to existing 
transportation infrastructure; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Vermillion has received numerous requests from the public to complete a 
downtown infrastructure project; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Vermillion strives to accommodate as many forms of transportation as 
possible, such as pedestrians, bicyclists, motorists, and mass transit, within the City’s road network; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Vermillion recently adopted the 2004 Vermillion Downtown Streetscape Plan 
as an informational document to be used as a resource in planning future downtown projects; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Vermillion also adopted goals that promote safety, financial viability of 
projects, historical conservation and to reintroduce the downtown area to the public; and,  
 
WHEREAS, the adopted goals are to be met during any project within the downtown area; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Vermillion wishes to improve the sidewalks within the downtown area to 
improve pedestrian accessibility, to provide bicycle racks for bicyclists, to improve pedestrian and 
motorists safety at the intersections, and to provide a dedicated mass transit stop; and,  
 
WHEREAS, the City of Vermillion is in support of applying for a grant through the State of South 
Dakota’s Transportation Alternatives Program to help defray a portion of the cost; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Vermillion will provide a match of at least 18.05% of the cost of the project; 
and, 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Vermillion will maintain the completed project through a combination of 
enforcement, public funds, or private initiatives. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Governing Body of the City of Vermillion that the  
City Council is in support of applying for a grant through the State of South Dakota’s Transportation 
Alternatives Program, and will be responsible for at least 18.05% of the cost of the project. 
 
Dated at Vermillion, South Dakota this 21st day of September, 2015. 
 
ATTEST:      FOR THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY 

OF VERMILLION, SOUTH DAKOTA 
 

By_________________________________          By___________________________________ 
Michael D. Carlson, Finance Officer   John E. (Jack) Powell, Mayor 

 





















































































 
  8. New Business; item e 

 

      
 Council Agenda Memo 

 
From: Jose Dominguez 
 

Meeting: September 21, 2015 
 

Subject: Developer’s Agreement with Polaris Industries Inc., Owner of Lot 1A, 
Block 3, Erickson Addition 

 

Presenter: Jose Dominguez 
 
Background: Polaris Industries Inc. is in the process of expanding their facilities along 
Carr Street south of SD Highway 50.  The new expansion will be fronting a portion of 
Carr Street that has not been constructed (the portion between Bower Street and Duke 
Street). 
 
Discussion: City ordinance requires that the property owner construct sidewalks, grading, 
curb and gutter, street surfacing, street lights, water and sewer improvements on all 
streets abutting a property to be developed. The lot in question fronts Carr Street and SD 
Highway 19. The agreement will require that the owner do the following: 
 

· Construction of Carr Street would be delayed until it’s either requested by the City 
Council or additional development needing the street is constructed. 

· All water main extensions required along Carr Street will be completed when either 
the City Council requests the improvements or when Carr Street is constructed. 

· Will not remonstrate against any assessments required along Carr Street regarding 
street or utility construction. 

 
Financial Consideration: The City will incur the filing fee. 
 
Conclusion/Recommendations: Administration recommends that the City Council 
authorize the Mayor to sign the Developer’s Agreement with Polaris Industries Inc. 









 
  8. New Business; item f 

 

  
 Council Agenda Memo 

 
From:  Mike Carlson, Finance Officer 
 

Meeting: September 21, 2015 
 

Subject:  2014 Audited Annual Comprehensive Financial Report 
 

Presenter: Mike Carlson 
 
Background: The 2014 unaudited annual report was presented to the City Council 
in March of 2015. Williams & Company P.C. has completed and submitted the 
final audit, which is included in the packet. As the Department of Legislative Audit 
has oversight over all City audits, a copy of the report has been submitted to their 
office as well. 
 
Discussion: The completed audit has been submitted to the South Dakota 
Department of Legislative Audit and oral acceptance has been received at this 
time. When the Department of Legislative Audit letter of acceptance is received, a 
copy will be provided to the City Council. Williams & Company, P.C. has also 
included a letter to the Mayor and City Council regarding the audited financial 
statements. In addition to the printed copies of the annual report, an electronic copy 
will be placed on the city web site under Finance Department. 
 
For those who receive the council packet electronically if you would like a hard 
copy of the report please let Mike know and one will be provided. 
 
Financial Consideration: An annual audit is a requirement based upon the amount 
of grants the City receives and is a requirement of bond resolutions. The audit fee 
was included in a five year contract with the second year being 2014 at an annual 
fee of $22,900, plus $2,600 for each major federal grant. There were no major 
federal grants during 2014. 
 
Conclusion/Recommendations: Administration recommends the City Council 
accept the audited comprehensive annual report. 

























































































































































































































































































 
  8. New Business; item g 

 

      
 Council Agenda Memo 

 
From: John Prescott, City Manager 
 

Meeting:  September 21, 2015 
 

Subject: Report of Labor and Finance Committee on AFSCME union negotiations 
 

Presenter: John Prescott 
 
Background: The City of Vermillion Labor and Finance Committee met on July 20, 
2015 to review progress on negotiating the union agreement with the AFSCME union. A 
number of items related to negotiations with this union were largely completed but a 
couple of outstanding items remained. The Labor and Finance Committee provided 
guidance on completing the negotiations. Since that time city staff met with the AFSCME 
union representatives on two occasions and reached agreement on a proposal within the 
guidelines established by the Labor and Finance Committee. 
 
Discussion: AFSCME represents employees in the following departments: Street, Water, 
Waste Water, Parks & Recreation, Solid Waste, and General Government with the 
exception of the Department Heads, supervisors, professional, confidential, part-time and 
seasonal employees. 
 
The bulk of the agreement remains the same as previous years. A few larger changes in 
the proposed agreement include:  

· The proposed agreement would run from January 1, 2016 until December 31, 2018. 
· The proposal provides for a cost of living adjustment of 2.5% on January 1, 2016, 

2.25% on January 1, 2017, and 2.25% on January 1, 2018. 
· All employees will pay a $30 monthly fee in addition to any health insurance 

premium for the type of health insurance coverage selected. 
· When Veterans Day falls on a Saturday or Sunday (occurs in 2017 & 2018), the 

employees will have the day after Thanksgiving as a paid holiday in these two years 
in place of the Friday or Monday preceding or following Veterans Day. 

· Changes to a couple of pay schedules for specific positions. 
 
Financial Consideration: None at this time. 
 
Conclusion/Recommendations: The recommendation of the Labor and Finance 
Committee to the City Council is to adopt the proposed AFSCME agreement. As the City 
Council cannot act on a report of a committee at the same meeting the report is received, 



 
  8. New Business; item g 

 

the City Council will need to accept the report and request the AFSCME agreement be 
considered at the October 5th meeting. 



CITY OF VERMILLION

INVOICES PAYABLE-SEPTEMBER 21, 2015

1 BROADCASTER ADVERTISING 87.00

2 BRUNICKS SERVICE INC FUEL 10,570.51

3 BUREAU OF ADMINISTRATION TELEPHONE 296.41

4 CANDACE COUNTRY GARDENS PLANTS 1,990.00

5 CENTURYLINK TELEPHONE 1,494.51

6 CITY OF VERMILLION LANDFILL VOUCHERS 600.00

7 CLAY CO REGISTER OF DEED FILING FEE 60.00

8 CLAY RURAL WATER SYSTEM WATER USAGE 63.60

9 CLAY-UNION ELECTRIC CORP ELECTRICITY 1,613.90

10 DAKOTA BEVERAGE MERCHANDISE 545.80

11 DEPT. ENVIRONMENT NATL RES LANDFILL OPERATIONS FEE 3,357.97

12 DRAIN MASTERS REPAIRS 569.39

13 GREGG PETERS MANAGERS FEE 6,000.00

14 JOSE DOMINGUEZ TRAVEL REIMBURSEMENT 195.00

15 LOREN FISCHER DISPOSAL HAUL CARDBOARD 210.00

16 MATHESON TRI-GAS, INC SUPPLIES 299.68

17 MIDAMERICAN GAS USAGE 969.21

18 MIDCONTINENT COMMUNICATION INTERNET/CABLE SERVICE 118.68

19 OGIO MERCHANDISE 179.52

20 REPUBLIC NATIONAL DIST. MERCHANDISE 19,678.78

21 RESERVE ACCOUNT POSTAGE FOR METER 900.00

22 SD PUBLIC ASSURANCE ALLIANCE INSURANCE COVERAGE 131.00

23 SIOUX EQUIPMENT PARTS 1,271.13

24 STERN OIL CO. FUEL 5,463.93

25 UNITED PARCEL SERVICE SHIPPING 15.21

26 US POSTMASTER POSTAGE FOR UTILITY BILLS 1,050.00

27 VERMILLION YOUTH FOOTBALL ONLINE REGISTRATION 2,857.33

28 RICK ERICKSON BRIGHT ENERGY REBATE 1,700.00

29 DONALD E PETERSON BRIGHT ENERGY REBATE 1,700.00

GRAND TOTAL $63,988.56


	1.a Agenda 9-21-2015 Special Agenda
	Access the City Council Agenda on the web – www.vermillion.us
	Special Meeting Agenda

	1.b Agenda 9-21-15
	City of Vermillion Council Agenda
	Access the City Council Agenda on the web – www.vermillion.us
	Vermillion City Council’s Values and Vision

	3.a 09-08-15 Special and Regular Minutes
	Unapproved Minutes
	Unapproved Minutes

	3.a 09-15-15  Special Meeting Minutes
	Unapproved Minutes

	6.a Agenda Memo Special Permit to Exceed Permissible Sound Level by no more than 50% WH Over Museum Octoberfest
	Subject: Special permit to exceed permissible sound levels by no more than 50% for W.H. Over Museum on October 9 &10, 2015 between 5:00 p.m. and 11:00 p.m. at 1110 N. University for Oktoberfest public celebration
	Presenter: Mike Carlson
	Background: Tim Bellis with the VCDC, in working with Dr. Larry Bradley of the W.H. Over Museum, has applied for a special permit to exceed allowable noise levels for an Oktoberfest event scheduled for October 9 &10, 2015 from 5:00 p.m. until 11:00 p....
	Financial Consideration: The $25 fee for the special permit has been paid.
	Conclusion/Recommendations: Administration recommends issuance of the special permit unless information is presented at the public hearing that indicates that there will be problems related to the noise.


	6.a Special Permit to exceed permissible sound levels WH Over applicaiton, diagram and notice of hearing
	6.b Agenda Memo Special Daily Malt Beverage and Wine License for VCDC on October 9-10
	Subject: Special daily malt beverage and wine license for Vermillion Area Chamber of Commerce and Development Company on or about October 9 & 10, 2015 at 1110 N. University Street for W.H. Over Museum Oktoberfest event
	Presenter: Mike Carlson
	Background: VCDC has submitted an application for a special daily malt beverage and wine license for the W. H. Over Museum Oktoberfest event on October 9 and 10, 2015 at the museum which is located at 1110 N. University Street.
	Discussion: The notice of public hearing, report from Police Chief, and diagram with event explanation are attached. VCDC Tourism Director Tim Bellis stated that President Abbott has no objections to the event.
	Financial Consideration: The City has received the $15 per day licensing fee and the $15 advertising fee from the applicant for a sum total of $45.
	Conclusion/Recommendations: Administration recommends approving the issuance of the special daily malt beverage and wine license on or about October 9 and 10, 2015 unless additional information is provided at the public hearing.



	6.b VCDC special daily license notice of hearing, Police Chief report and diagram
	7.a Agenda Memo Ordinance 1330-2016 Appropriations
	Subject: Second Reading of Ordinance No. 1330- 2016 Appropriations
	Presenter: John Prescott, City Manager
	Background: SDCL 9-21-2 addresses the need for the City Council to adopt an annual budget:
	The governing body of each municipality shall, no later than its first regular meeting in September of each year or within ten days thereafter, introduce the annual appropriation ordinance for the ensuing fiscal year, in which it shall appropriate the...
	Discussion: The City Manager prepared and presented a budget to the City Council at the August 3 meeting. The City Council reviewed the proposed budget during special meetings held on August 11 and 13, 2015. The City Council’s revisions from the budge...
	The 2016 budget included property tax revenues of $2,190,500 that includes using an increase of 1% plus growth over 2015 where the state statute allows 1.5% plus growth. The budget includes a 2.5% cost of living adjustment for employee wages. The gene...
	Rate increases have been included for electric, water, wastewater, curbside recycling and golf course to offset increased operating costs.

	Financial Consideration: Approval of the first reading of the 2016 Appropriations Ordinance at the September 8th meeting was one step in providing for 2016 operations and in complying with State law to adopt an appropriations ordinance.
	Conclusion/Recommendations: Administration recommends approval of the second reading of the 2016 Appropriations Ordinance No. 1330. As this is the second reading of the ordinance, a roll call vote is required.


	7.a Ordinance 1330 Budget 2016
	bud ord 2016

	7.b Agenda Memo Ordinance 1331-2015 Revised Appropriatons
	Subject: Second Reading of Ordinance No. 1331 – 2015 Revised Appropriations
	Presenter: John Prescott, City Manager
	Background: In order for the City Council to make changes to the 2015 budget, adopted in September 2014, a revised or supplemental appropriations ordinance is required. The proposed changes were presented to the City Council during the budget meetings...
	Discussion: The revised appropriations ordinance includes changes and adjustments made to the 2015 budget based upon actual financial information obtained thus far in 2015. Revenues and expenses are different in some instances versus what was anticipa...

	Financial Consideration: For the revisions to become effective, the City Council will need to adopt the revised appropriations ordinance. The revised budget includes a smaller transfer to the General Fund from the General Fund reserve than originally ...
	Conclusion/Recommendations: Administration recommends that the City Council approve the second reading of the 2015 Revised Appropriations Ordinance No. 1331. As this is the second reading of the ordinance, a roll call vote is required.


	7.b Ordinance 1331 Budget  2015 Revised
	bud ord 2015

	8.a Agenda Memo Tree Board Appt
	Subject: Tree Board reappointment
	Presenter: Mayor Jack Powell
	Background: By ordinance the City Council is charged with appointing members of the City Tree Board.
	As noted, the Tree Board is comprised of five members, which includes two citizens and residents of Vermillion. The terms for the citizen members are for two (2) years. Clarence Pederson was appointed to a two-year term on the Tree Board in August 201...
	Discussion: In addition to the two citizen members, the other current members of the Tree Board are Howard Willson, Pete Jahn, and Aaron Baedke. Jim Goblirsch serves as an ex-officio member of the board. As the Tree Board is just getting re-establishe...

	Financial Consideration: None.
	Conclusion/Recommendations: If City Council is comfortable with Jim Brady serving on the Tree Board, Administration recommends appointing him to serve on the City Tree Board for a full two-year term.


	8.b Agenda Memo Request to Close portions of Main Street for Verm Town Bash
	Subject: Amended Street closure request for USD Verm Town Bash
	Presenter: Andy Colvin
	Background: The Dakota Days Executive Board is sponsoring a community wide event associated with Dakota Days on Wednesday, September 30, 2015. In the initial request at the August 3rd City Council meeting, activities were planned using Market Street f...
	Discussion: On September 17th, City staff was contacted about amending the request to also include a portion of Main Street between Prospect Street and High Street, which would be the section near Ratingen Platz.  The intersections at High and Prospec...
	Financial Consideration: None.


	8.b Modification of 9-30 Street Closure Request
	8.c Agenda Memo Utilities Committee report
	Subject: Report of Utilities Committee on amending Chapter 53 Water, Sewers, and Sewage Disposal, Sections 53.110 through 53.123, and Section 53.018
	Presenter: Jose Dominguez
	Background: The City of Vermillion Utilities Committee met on September 15, 2015 to review proposed sewer rate changes. The City has an ordinance that addresses how large users would be charged.  However, the ordinance needs to be brought up to date t...
	Discussion: The ordinance presented to the Committee addressed several areas that needed to be brought current to fairly charge all of our users in case we had a large industrial/commercial user in town.  The proposed ordinance would address how the a...


	8.c Utility Committee Minutes 9-15-2015
	8.d Agenda Memo TAP Resolution
	Subject: Resolution Supporting the City’s Transportation Alternatives Program Grant Application for a Possible Downtown Infrastructure Program
	Presenter: Jose Dominguez
	Background: Through the sidewalk repair project and the proposed improvements to the intersection of Main and Center/Court, the City received several inquiries about the possibility of having a larger downtown project. In order to see if there was any...
	Financial Consideration: At this point there is no financial commitment. However, if the City was to be awarded a grant and the City accepts it, the City will have to provide at least $72,200 of the project, or 18.05% of the $400,000 grant.  This woul...


	8.d Resolution TAP
	8.d TAP Grant Application
	8.e Agenda Memo Developer's Agreement
	Subject: Developer’s Agreement with Polaris Industries Inc., Owner of Lot 1A, Block 3, Erickson Addition
	Presenter: Jose Dominguez
	Background: Polaris Industries Inc. is in the process of expanding their facilities along Carr Street south of SD Highway 50.  The new expansion will be fronting a portion of Carr Street that has not been constructed (the portion between Bower Street ...
	Financial Consideration: The City will incur the filing fee.


	8.e Developer's Agreement
	8.f Agenda Memo 2014 Audited annual report
	Subject:  2014 Audited Annual Comprehensive Financial Report
	Presenter: Mike Carlson
	Background: The 2014 unaudited annual report was presented to the City Council in March of 2015. Williams & Company P.C. has completed and submitted the final audit, which is included in the packet. As the Department of Legislative Audit has oversight...
	Discussion: The completed audit has been submitted to the South Dakota Department of Legislative Audit and oral acceptance has been received at this time. When the Department of Legislative Audit letter of acceptance is received, a copy will be provid...

	Financial Consideration: An annual audit is a requirement based upon the amount of grants the City receives and is a requirement of bond resolutions. The audit fee was included in a five year contract with the second year being 2014 at an annual fee o...
	Conclusion/Recommendations: Administration recommends the City Council accept the audited comprehensive annual report.


	8.f Audited Annual Financial Report 2014
	8.f Auditor letter to Mayor and City Council
	8.g Agenda Memo Labor & Finance Committee report
	Subject: Report of Labor and Finance Committee on AFSCME union negotiations
	Presenter: John Prescott
	Background: The City of Vermillion Labor and Finance Committee met on July 20, 2015 to review progress on negotiating the union agreement with the AFSCME union. A number of items related to negotiations with this union were largely completed but a cou...
	Discussion: AFSCME represents employees in the following departments: Street, Water, Waste Water, Parks & Recreation, Solid Waste, and General Government with the exception of the Department Heads, supervisors, professional, confidential, part-time an...


	11. Invoices Payable 9-21-15 COUNCIL MTG
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page



